
 
 

Remote Meeting Instructions for the May 4, 2021, City Council Meeting: 
 

In order to comply with all health orders and State guidelines to stop the spread of 
the COVID-19 Coronavirus, no physical location, including the City Council 
Chambers, will be set up for viewing or participating in this Council Meeting. 

 
You can view this Council Meeting by following the instructions below to watch the 
YouTube live stream. By utilizing this option to view the meeting, you will not be able 
to provide live input during the meeting. To provide live input, see the “In real time” 
instructions near the bottom of this page. 

 
 From your laptop or computer, click the following link or enter it manually into 

your Web Browser: (www.youtube.com/CityofGreeley) 
 Clicking the link above will take you to the City of Greeley’s YouTube 

Channel. 
 Once there, you will be able to view the meeting! 

 
Citizen input and public comment for items appearing on this agenda as  
public hearings are valuable and welcome! 

 

Anyone interested in participating and sharing public comments has a few of 
options: 

 
Via email? – Submit to cityclerks@greeleygov.com 
All comments submitted this way will be read into the record at the appropriate 
points during this meeting in real time. Comments can be submitted up to and 
throughout this meeting. 

 
Via traditional Mail? - Address to the Greeley City Clerk’s Office, 1000 10th Street, 
Greeley, CO 80631 
All written comments must be received no later than the day of the meeting. Again, 
written comments received by mail will also be read into the record in real time. 

 
In real time? - https://greeleygov.zoom.us/j/98241485414 
Clicking the link above will give you access to the live meeting where you will become a 
virtual audience member and be able to speak under Citizen Input on items not already 
on the agenda or during a scheduled public hearing. 

 
Please visit the City’s website at https://greeleygov.com/government/council to 
view and download the contents of the May 4, 2021, City Council Meeting. You are 
also welcome to call the City Clerk’s Office at 970-350-9740 with any special needs 
or questions that you may have. 



City Council Agenda 
May 04, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

This meeting will be conducted remotely. (See previous 

page for participation instructions and/or to view the 

YouTube live stream.) 

  

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Approval of the Agenda 

5. Recognitions and Proclamations 

6. Citizen Input 

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

8. Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow 

the City Council to handle several routine items with one action. 

Council or staff may request an item be “pulled” off the Consent 

Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item 

in the order they were listed. 

9. Acceptance of the Report of the April 13, 2021, City 

Council Worksession 

10. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of April 20, 2021 

11. Consideration of a joint City Council and Water and Sewer 

Board resolution to dissolve the Industrial Water Bank 

12. Consideration of a resolution authorizing entry into the First 

Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage 

Treatment Services between the City of Greeley, Colorado 

and the City of Evans, Colorado 

End of Consent Agenda 

13. Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

 
 

Mayor 

John Gates 

Councilmembers 

Tommy Butler 

Ward I 

Brett Payton 

Ward II 

Michael Fitzsimmons 

Ward III 

Dale Hall 

Ward IV 

Ed Clark 

At-Large 

Kristin Zasada 

At-Large 

 

A City Achieving 

Community Excellence 
Greeley promotes a 

healthy, diverse economy 

and high quality of life 

responsive to all its 

residents and 

neighborhoods, 

thoughtfully managing its 

human and natural 

resources in a manner 

that creates and sustains 

a safe, unique, vibrant 

and rewarding 

community in which to 

live, work, and play. 

 

Page 1



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

14. Public hearing and final reading of an ordinance authorizing the sale of an easement over 

approximately 11.56 acres of City-owned property, located in Section 4, Township 7 North, 

Range 66 West of the 6th P.M. in Weld County (“Balmer Farm”) 

15. Public hearing to consider a change of zone from R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A (Holding 

Agriculture) to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) zoning with a Development Concept Master 

Plan for approximately 12.98 acres of property located at 7001 28th Street, known as the 7001 

28th Street Rezone, and final reading of an ordinance changing the official zoning map to 

reflect the same 

16. Consideration of a resolution of the Greeley City Council endorsing the candidacy of 

Councilmember Dale Hall for the Executive Board of the Colorado Municipal League 

17. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

18. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required resolutions, 

agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this meeting and 

at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign all such resolutions, 

agreements and ordinances 

19. Consideration of an Executive Session to determine positions, develop strategy and instruct 

negotiators regarding collective bargaining with the Greeley Police Officers Union and 

Greeley Fire Fighters Union Local 888 

20. Adjournment 

Page 2



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021 

 

Title 

Call to Order 

                                 

Page 3

Item No. 1.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021 

 

Title 

Pledge of Allegiance 

                                 

Page 4

Item No. 2.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021 

 

Title 

Roll Call 

Summary 

Mayor Gates 

Councilmember Butler 

Councilmember Payton 

Councilmember Hall 

Councilmember Fitzsimmons 

Councilmember Clark 

Councilmember Zasada 
                                 

Page 5

Item No. 3.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Mat 4, 2021 

 

Title 

Approval of the Agenda 

     

 

                       

Page 6

Item No. 4.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021  

 

Title 

Recognitions and Proclamations 

Summary 

Councilmember Clark will present the What’s Great about Greeley Report. 

 

Mayor Gates presented two proclamations; one recognizing May, 2021 as Mental 

Health Month which and one recognizing May, 2021 as Historic Preservation Month. 

 

Attachments 

What’s Great about Greeley Report 

Mental Health Month Proclamation 

Historic Preservation Month Proclamation 
                                 

Page 7

Item No. 5.



Slide 1 

Greeley City Council
May 4, 2021
Councilmember Ed Clark

GreeleyGov.com

 

 

Slide 2 
“If you belittle what you 

have…it becomes less.

If you appreciate what

you have …

it becomes more.”
~Gelene McDonald

 

At each Council Meeting, 
we recognize the people, 
organizations and 
businesses that make 
Greeley Great. Tonight it’s 
my turn to announce the 
recognitions.  I’ll start with a 
quote, “If you belittle what 
you have, it becomes less.  If 
you appreciate what you 
have, it becomes more.”  
With these announcements 
we are appreciating the 
good work of our residents, 
showing support for their 
efforts, and encouraging 
everyone to share the word 
that Greeley is Great. 
 
 

 

Page 8

Item No. 5.



Slide 3 
University of Northern Colorado

Big Sky Player of the Week

 

University of Northern 
Colorado softball player, 
Mady Young, has earned the 
Big Sky Player of the Week  
award for the second 
straight time. 
 

 

Slide 4 
Greeley West High School

Boettcher Scholar | National Merit Scholar

 

Greeley West senior 
Brendan McCune has been 
named as a Boettcher 
Scholarship winner for 2021. 
The scholarships are 
awarded annually by the 
Boettcher Foundation and 
provides $20,000 for 
Colorado students to attend 
any four-year college or 
university in the state. 
Brendan has also been 
named a National Merit 
Scholar and is one of 16 
Colorado students to receive 
the National Merit 
scholarship. 
 
 

 

Page 9

Item No. 5.



Slide 5 
Colorado Broadcasters Association

KFKA Takes First

Best News/Talk Show in a Major Market – NoCo Now

 

1310 KFKA received first 
place for ‘NOCO Now’ in the 
Best News/Talk Show in a 
major market category by 
the Colorado Broadcasters 
Association. 
 

 

Slide 6 

Greeley City Council - 2021  

GreeleyGov.com

 

And that’s What’s Great 
about Greeley. 
 

 

Slide 7 

 

Tonight we would like to 

honor and remember former 

City of Greeley employee 

and Greeley advocate Peggy 

Ford Waldo. In 1979, Peggy 

began what would become a 

41-and-a-half year career 

with the Greeley Museums. 

Though small in stature, her 

photographic memory and 

love for all things Greeley 

Page 10

Item No. 5.



have made a huge impact on 

our community. She was a 

life-long learner, a 

volunteer, a teacher to all, a 

mother, and a friend.  As her 

son, Adam, stated at her 

recent memorial “Who was 

she? She was everything. 

Who is she? She’s all of us. 

Where is she now? She’s 

everywhere.” Thank you 

Peggy for your lasting legacy 

in our community. 

 

 

Page 11

Item No. 5.



 

Mental Health Month 
WHEREAS, behavioral health is as important as physical health, with the health of our minds 

affecting how we think, feel and live; and 

 WHEREAS, life’s challenges can affect people’s behavioral health, with more Weld County residents 
having reported experiences of depression, anxiety, or other mental health conditions than in years past; and 
 

WHEREAS, while one in every four people are affected by mental illness, we know that 
hospitalizations, incarcerations, childhood trauma, suicides, and substance use disorder can be prevented 
through early and effective treatment, local collaboration, and community-based prevention; and 
 
 WHEREAS, without regard for ability to pay, Greeley residents have had access to critical crisis 
support services through North Range Behavioral Health, Weld County’s community mental health center; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Greeley residents can find recovery through a variety of services at numerous North 
Range residential and outpatient facilities throughout Weld County; and 
 

WHEREAS, Greeley residents are healthier because of North Range’s commitment to collaboration 
with community health centers, school districts, human services, law enforcement, United Way, and many 
others; and 
 

WHEREAS, National Mental Health Month is observed every May to raise awareness about 
behavioral health, recovery, and the importance of prevention and mental wellness. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, do hereby proclaim May 2021, as Mental Health Month in Greeley and call 
upon the citizens, government agencies, public and private institutions, businesses and schools to recommit 
our community to increasing awareness and understanding of behavioral health, and the need for appropriate 
and accessible services for all citizens. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the official seal of 
the City of Greeley, Colorado, this 4th day of May, 2021. 

     
 
 

____________________________ 
     John Gates 
     Mayor 

Page 12

Item No. 5.



 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MONTH 

 
WHEREAS, historic preservation is an effective tool for revitalizing 

neighborhoods, fostering local pride, realizing economic growth, and maintaining 
community character, and is relevant for communities across the nation, both urban and 
rural, and for Americans of all ages, all walks of life and all ethnic backgrounds; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is important to celebrate the role of history in our lives and the 
contributions made by dedicated individuals in helping to preserve the tangible aspects of 
the heritage that has shaped us as a people; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley and the Greeley Historic Preservation 
Commission desire to collaborate in honoring Greeley’s and Colorado’s historic resources 
and sites and to honor Greeley Historian Peggy Ford Waldo for her contributions to historic 
preservation and documentation of Greeley history; and 

 
WHEREAS, May is Historic Preservation Month, and in recognition of this 

month the Commission plans to celebrate by showing the Windows of Time documentaries 
on GTV8, host a virtual History Brown Bag on Zoom, and sponsor a walking tour, in the 
future. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, John Gates, by virtue of the authority vested in me 
as Mayor of the City of Greeley, do hereby proclaim May 2021, as Historic Preservation Month 
and call upon the people of Greeley to join their fellow citizens across the United States in 
recognizing and participating in this special observance. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be 

affixed the official seal of the City of Greeley this 4th day of May, 2021. 
 
 
 

________________________ 
John Gates 
Mayor 

      

Page 13

Item No. 5.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021  

 

Title 

Citizen Input 

Summary 

During this 15 minute portion of the meeting, anyone may address the Council on 

any item of City Business appropriate for Council consideration that is not already 

listed on this evening’s agenda. Individual comments read into the record will be 

limited to 3 minutes and must include the name and address of the person 

submitting the comments for the record. 
                                 

Page 14

Item No. 6.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021  

 

Title 

Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may offer announcements or 

reports on recent events and happenings.  These reports should be a summary of the 

Councilmember’s attendance at assigned board/commission meetings and should 

include key highlights and points that may require additional decision and discussion 

by the full Council at a future time.   
 

Page 15

Item No. 7.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021  

 

Title 

Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting any Councilmember may bring before the Council 

any business that the member feels should be deliberated upon by the Council.  These 

matters need not be specifically listed on the Agenda, but formal action on such 

matters shall be deferred until a subsequent Council meeting. 

 

Initiatives will generally fall into three categories: 

 

1) A policy item for Council deliberation and direction for a future Worksession, 

Committee meeting, or regular/special Council meeting; 

 

2) A request to the City Manager for information or research; 

 

3) A request involving administrative processes or procedures. 

 

At the close of this portion of the meeting, the Mayor will confirm Council’s consensus 

that the individual requests be pursued. 

 

Attachments 

Status Report of Council Initiatives and Related Information 

                                 

Page 16

Item No. 8.



 

 

Greeley City Council 
 

Status Report of Council Initiatives 
 

Initiative 

No. 

 

 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee Meeting 

Date Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one time as 

completed and then removed.) 
Assigned to: 

01-2021 Council Member Zasada offered an 

initiative relating to the level of the use 

of outside consultants by the City. She 

requested and received consensus to 

proceed with seeking an internal audit 

for the previous two years relating to 

the use of outside consultants on City 

projects and operations, including the 

total costs involved.  

January 19, 2021 

Council Meeting 

Update: 4/23/2021 

Staff indicated that a draft of the report would 

be provided to Council Member Zasada 

before finalization and transmittal to the 

Council to close out the petition. 

 

Update: 03/08/2021: After discussing the 

request and draft response with Council 

Member Zasada, staff will focus on 

professional service contracts within 

operations with a response provided by 

snapshot in April.  

 

Update: 03/03/2021  

A response to this initiative will be provided 

to Council by March 12, 2021.  

 

In response to Council Member Zasada' s 

request for an audit of the usage of consultants 

within the City, the Purchasing Division of 

the Finance Department will compile an 

inventory of contracts of a value of $50,000 

or greater with consultants of a professional 

services nature between the period of 2018-

2020 including cost, host department, and 

Paul Fetherston 

Page 17

Item No. 8.



Initiative 

No. 

 

 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee Meeting 

Date Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one time as 

completed and then removed.) 
Assigned to: 

purpose associated with contracting services 

for distribution to the City Council. 

03-2021 Also related to the Poudre River Trail, 

Council Member Hall noted the 

section of the trail known as the 

Narrows is facing increasing risks of 

erosion, with some portions in danger 

of falling into the river, and no 

available alternative areas for trail 

placement m that vicinity. The School 

of Mines will do a project to work on 

some engineering solutions for the 

area, in addition to other engineering 

studies that have already been done. 

Council Member Hall requested the 

formation of a committee, which he 

would chair, to review and determine 

options to move forward in addressing 

this with the assistance of City staff 

City Manager Otto added information 

about potential Capital Improvement 

Projects through this area, and Council 

Member Hall provided information 

about existing potential rough cost 

estimates m response to questions 

from the Council. 

February 2, 2021 

Council Meeting 

Update: 04/20/2021 

Council Member Hall provide an update on 

his initiative regarding the Poudre Narrows.  

He reported that the committee had its first 

meeting and that he is pleased with 

engagement from City staff and the 

community.   

 

A committee, chaired by Council Member 

and Poudre River Trail Corridor Chairman 

Hall, has been formed with representatives 

from the Poudre Trail Corridor Board, 

Culture, Parks and Recreation/Natural Areas 

and Trails, Public Works, Water and Sewer, 

the Poudre River Run Master HOA, a 

member of the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board, and a representative from 

the Ditch #3 Board. Committee Chairman 

Hall has also referenced initial 

communications with Otak Engineering, a 

consulting firm who produced a study of this 

area in 2018 for the City of Greeley, as well 

as the Colorado School of Mines engineering 

students who will conduct a capstone project 

this semester towards a suggested course of 

action and suggested funding mechanism(s). 

An initial assessment with design 

parameters, recommended course( s) of 

action including recommended funding 

sources, is expected in June, 2021 post 

Andy 

McRoberts 

Page 18

Item No. 8.



Initiative 

No. 

 

 

Council Request 

Council Meeting, 

Worksession, or 

Committee Meeting 

Date Requested 

Status or Disposition 

(After completion, item is shown one time as 

completed and then removed.) 
Assigned to: 

consultation with the Mines student project 

and engineering consultants. Although this 

project will carry on m practicality through 

committee work, it is now considered closed 

as an Initiative.  
 

Page 19

Item No. 8.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Consent Agenda 
May 4, 2021 

The Consent Agenda is a meeting management tool to allow the City Council to handle several 

routine items with one action. 

Once the Clerk has read each Consent Agenda item into the record, along with Council’s 

recommended action, Council or staff may request the item be “pulled” off the Consent 

Agenda and considered separately under the next agenda item in the order they were listed. 

The Consent Agenda includes Items No. 9 through 12 and their recommended actions. 

Council’s Recommended Action 

To approve Items No. _____ through _____ or 

To approve Items No. _____ through _____ with the exceptions of No.(s) _____ 

Page 20



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
May 4, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Acceptance of the Report of the April 13, 2021, City Council Worksession 

Summary:  

A City Council Worksession was held on April 13, 2021, virtually utilizing the Zoom Platform. 

Decision Options:  

1) 1.  To accept the Report as presented; or 

2) 2. Amend the Report if amendments or corrections are needed, and accept as 

amended. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to accept the Report as presented. 

Attachments: 
April 13, 2021 Report 

 

 

Page 21

Item No. 9.



1 
 

Worksession Report of April 13, 2021 - Draft 

City of Greeley, Colorado 

COUNCIL WORKSESSION REPORT 

April 13, 2021 
  

1. Call to Order 

Mayor John Gates called the remote meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. via the City's Zoom 

platform. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 

3. Roll Call 

Cheryl Aragon, Deputy City Clerk, called the roll. 

PRESENT 

Mayor John Gates 

Council Member Tommy Butler 

Council Member Brett Payton  

Council Member Dale Hall 

Council Member Michael Fitzsimmons 

Council Member Ed Clark 

Council Member Kristin Zasada 

 

4. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

There were no reports offered from Council Members. 

5. COVID-19 Update 

Assistant Emergency Manager Charlie McCartin referenced the real-time COVID-19  

Dashboard and confirmed that there has been an increase to the Weld County 7-day 

average and in the Greeley/Evans area.   

 

City Clerk Anissa Hollingshead confirmed that the Greeley/Evans 7-day average is 

climbing adding that it is below the Weld County level but is still a rise.   

 

6. Update from Area Electric Providers on Inclement Weather Electric Outages  

Deputy City Manager Raymond Lee reported that this item is in direct response to  

Council’s request to hear directly from electric providers about the response during the 

March 2021 snow event. 

 

He introduced John Bowerfind, Vice President Chief Operating Officer, and Amy Rosier,  

Page 22

Item No. 9.



2 
 

Worksession Report of April 13, 2021 - Draft 

Vice President Member and Government Relations, from Poudre Valley Rural Electric 

and Lucas McConnell, Area Manager Community and Government Affairs, for Xcel 

Energy. 

 

Mr. Bowerbind provided some background about Poudre Valley Rural Electric and 

reviewed a timeline and statistics related to Poudre Valley’s response the March snow 

event.  He noted that even lines buried underground will not entirely eliminate outages.  

He also shared that they do proactively change and upgrade lines and equipment as 

needed to help prevent major outages and impacts, and he emphasized that ice and 

wind build up certainly contributed to this recent outage. 

 

Mr. McConnell also provided a bit of background and details regarding Xcel’s response 

to the March snow event. He shared storm facts and area totals, and also emphasized 

that significant winds impacted service during this snow event.  He also reviewed future 

improvements, as well as ongoing improvements, and noted that he could provide 

specific locations of outages and the longest outages for this recent storm to Council.   

 

Council Members expressed appreciation for this information and updates and 

encouraged ongoing collaboration and communication with City staff. 

 

 

7. Development Code Update – Chapters 1 & 2  

 

Chief Planner Carol Kuhn reported that this discussion will cover the proposed revisions 

to Chapters 1 and 2 of the Development Code, which are the foundation for the other 

chapters of the Code.  She proceeded to review and highlight Chapter 1 revisions 

which relate to general provisions, interpretations, enforcement, and administration of 

the Code and Chapter 2 which related to procedures and processes for the various 

application types and shared a Table which outlined those proposed changes. 

 

Chief Planner Kuhn noted that members of the Technical Committee are working with 

the consulting team to draft Code language that will come back to Council in 

September for final adoption. 

 

Council Members offered general support for the work done and proposed changes to 

Chapters 1 and 2 of the Development Code. 

 

 

8. Development Code Update – Placemaking  

  

 Chief Planner Kuhn reported that this is the final topic in the Track III discussion with the 

Advisory Committee, Planning Commission and the City Council and noted that this 

discussion will create the foundation to drafting numerous Code sections and focuses 

mainly on commercial and industrial design standards as well as street design 

standards. 

 

 She introduced Chris Brewster, Consultant, who reviewed placemaking and its 

usefulness in creating vibrant, walkable, people-oriented destinations within a 

Page 23

Item No. 9.



3 
 

Worksession Report of April 13, 2021 - Draft 

community and shared some issues in the existing Code related to this topic and some 

best practices for creating these spaces within the community. 

 

 Council Members offered general support for staff to proceed with these changes as 

outlined by staff. 

 

9. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

  

 No additional meetings or events were scheduled. 

 

10. Consideration of an Executive Session to determine positions, develop strategy 

and instruct negotiators regarding collective bargaining with the Greeley Fire 

Fighters Union Local 888 

 

 City Manager Roy Otto noted that there was no longer a need for this Executive Session 

on this topic at this time. 

 

11. Adjournment 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was 

adjourned at 8:12 p.m.  

 

 

 
 

___________________________________ 

John Gates, Mayor 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Cheryl Aragon, Deputy City Clerk 

Page 24

Item No. 9.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
May 4, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, 350-9742 

  

Title:  

Approval of the City Council Proceedings of April 20, 2021 

Summary:  

A meeting of the City Council was held on April 20, 2021, virtually utilizing the Zoom 

Platform. 

Decision Options:  

1) 1.  To approve the proceedings as presented; or 

2) 2.  Amend the proceedings if amendments or corrections are needed, and approve 

3)  as amended. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to approve the City Council proceedings as presented. 

Attachments: 
April 20, 2021 Proceedings 

 

 

 

Page 25

Item No. 10.



1 
 

City Council Proceedings of April 20, 2021 - Draft 
 

City of Greeley, Colorado 

CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 

April 20, 2021 

 

 
  

1. Call to Order 

Mayor John Gates called the remote meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. via the City's Zoom 

platform. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Gates led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 

3. Roll Call 

Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, called the roll. 

PRESENT 

Mayor John Gates 

Council Member Tommy Butler 

Council Member Brett Payton 

Council Member Dale Hall 

Council Member Michael Fitzsimmons 

Council Member Ed Clark 

Council Member Kristin Zasada 

4. Approval of the Agenda 

The agenda was approved as presented upon noting that an Executive Session relative 

to Item No. 18 will not be needed. 

5. Recognitions and Proclamations 

Mayor Gates presented a proclamation recognizing April 20, 2021, as National Youth 

Service Day and assisted Madison Zeller, Youth Commissioner, with the presentation of 

the National Youth Service Day Awards.  

Council Member Butler presented the What's Great About Greeley Report. 

6. Citizen Input 

City Clerk Hollingshead read one comment from Kristopher Trabue, Greeley resident, 

into the record relative to the increasing problem of vagrants near 11th Avenue and 

Highway 34 in which several concerns were shared.   

Mayor Gates noted that the Police Department has been involved and asked Greeley 

Police Chief Mark Jones to elaborate.   

Page 26

Item No. 10.



2 
 

City Council Proceedings of April 20, 2021 - Draft 
 

Chief Jones expressed that in terms of enforcement it is difficult to navigate the different 

rules and regulations. He stated there is a plan to have it cleaned out on April 29th in a 

legal manner. He stated, for future reference, that cleaning the area out does not 

prohibit people from coming back, in which case, the process has to start over again.   

No additional Citizen Input was offered. 

7. Reports from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Council Member Fitzsimmons gave his thanks for having the work session with the 

Poudre Valley Rural Electric Association (REA) and Xcel Energy and spoke of his 

discussions with Xcel in which City staff was highly spoken of. 

8. Initiatives from Mayor and Councilmembers 

Council Member Hall provided an update on his initiative regarding the Poudre 

Narrows. He reported that the committee had its first meeting and that he is pleased 

with engagement from City staff and the community.   

Consent Agenda 

Council Member Butler moved, seconded by Council Member Zasada, to approve items 

9-12 on the consent agenda as presented. 

The motion carried 7-0. 

9. Approval of the City Council Proceedings of April 6, 2021 

The Council action recommended and approved was to approve the City Council 

proceedings as presented. 

10. Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the sale of an easement 

over approximately 11.56 acres of City-owned property, located in Section 4, 

Township 7 North, Range 66 West of the 6th P.M. in Weld County (“Balmer Farm”) 

The Council action recommended and approved was to introduce the ordinance and 

schedule the public hearing and final reading for May 5, 2021. 

11. Introduction and first reading of an ordinance changing the official zoning map of 

the City of Greeley, Colorado, from R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A (Holding 

Agriculture) to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) zoning with a Development 

Concept Master Plan for approximately 12.98 acres of property, located at 7001 

28th Street, known as the 7001 28th Street Rezone 

The Council action recommended and approved was to introduce the ordinance and 

schedule the public hearing and final reading for May 5, 2021. 

12. Consideration of a resolution for an Intergovernmental Agreement regarding 

rehabilitation work for the Cameron Peak Fire  

The Council action recommended was to adopt the resolution. 

Page 27

Item No. 10.



3 
 

City Council Proceedings of April 20, 2021 - Draft 
 

Resolution No. 13, 2021, approving an Intergovernmental Agreement regarding 

rehabilitation work for the Cameron Peak Fire, was adopted. 

End of Consent Agenda 

13. Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

No items were pulled from the consent agenda. 

14. COVID-19 Update 

Dan Frazen, Emergency Manager, provided an update on the employee data on the 

City’s dashboard and spoke of the Governor’s report relative to COVID-19. 

15. Appointment of applicants to the Citizen Transportation Advisory Board, Greeley 

Urban Renewal Authority, Museum Board, and the Rodarte Community Center 

Advisory Board 

 Citizen Transportation Advisory Board: Council directed staff to recruit for 

additional applicants. 

 Greeley Urban Renewal Authority: Council appointed Michael Silva. 

 Museum Board: Council appointed Emma Peña-McCleave. 

 Rodarte Community Center Advisory Board: Council appointed Julie Jensen. 

16. Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

No other meetings or events were scheduled. 

17. Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City 

Council at this meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor 

and City Clerk to sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

Council Member Hall moved, seconded by Council Member Fitzsimmons, to approve 

the above authorizations. 

The motion carried 7-0. 

 

Council Member Zasada requested that they go back to have a brief discussion 

regarding Council initiatives. She reminded staff of her initiative request from the 

January 19, 2021, Council meeting in which she requested information about the costs 

associated with contractors that the City uses and spoke of the last update she 

received. City Manager, Roy Otto, indicated that staff is still working on this initiative 

and will be in touch with shortly to go over the initial report.  

 

18. Consideration of an Executive Session to determine positions, develop strategy 

and instruct negotiators regarding collective bargaining with the Greeley Fire 

Fighters Union Local 888 

This item was deleted from the agenda. 

 

19. Adjournment 

Page 28

Item No. 10.



4 
 

City Council Proceedings of April 20, 2021 - Draft 
 

With no further business before the Council, Mayor Gates adjourned the meeting at 6:26 

p.m. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

John Gates, Mayor 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Anissa N. Hollingshead, City Clerk 

Page 29

Item No. 10.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
May 4, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director, 970-350-9815 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a joint City Council and Water and Sewer Board resolution to dissolve 

the Industrial Water Bank 

Summary: 
 

The Industrial Water Bank (IWB) was created by Joint Resolution 52, 1998 to purchase, 

acquire, hold, and sell water to job creating industrial users. The IWB was intended to 

spur economic growth by providing competitively priced raw water supplies from a 

bank of water that Greeley had acquired at low prices. The IWB was not widely used, 

however, it was instrumental in attracting Leprino to build its facility in Greeley.  

 

With the closing of the Terry Ranch master agreement now complete, the IWB needs 

to be dissolved. In order to not devalue the Raw Water Credits associated with the Terry 

Ranch agreement, a minimum price for cash-in-lieu of raw water was set that is 

incompatible with future industrial customers paying IWB raw water prices. Additionally, 

because of the raw water advantages that Greeley now enjoys, the IWB is no longer 

necessary to meet the objectives set in Joint Resolution 25, 1998. The Water and Sewer 

Board adopted the joint resolution dissolving the IWB at their April 21, 2021 meeting.  

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process. The City Attorney’s Office has 

reviewed and approved the joint resolution. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Strategic Work Program Item or Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Page 30

Item No. 11.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Economic Health & Development: Foster and maintain public and private investment 

in business development. 

 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: 

Joint City Council and Water and Sewer Board Resolution 

 

Page 31

Item No. 11.



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 RESOLUTION ______, 2021 

 

A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GREELEY CITY COUNCIL AND WATER AND SEWER 

BOARD DISSOLVING THE INDUSTRIAL WATER BANK 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council and Water and Sewer Board established, by Joint Resolution 

52, 1998, a water bank to purchase, acquire, hold, and sell water to selected industrial 

users for that water not required by the City of Greeley to meet its existing level of 

drought protection (“Industrial Water Bank”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council and Water and Sewer Board subsequently clarified the 

availability of water held in the Industrial Water Bank via the adoption of Joint 

Resolution 63, 2007, amending Joint Resolution 52, 1998; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Water and Sewer Board subsequently adjusted the balance of water to 

be held in the Industrial Water Bank via the adoption of Resolution 11, 2007, Resolution 

1, 2011, and Resolution 3, 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council and Water and Sewer Board have determined that the 

Industrial Water Bank is no longer necessary to meet the general objectives originally set 

forth in Joint Resolution 52, 1998. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT JOINTLY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE WATER AND 

SEWER BOARD OF GREELEY, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Joint Resolution 52, 1998, Joint Resolution 63, 2007, Resolution 11, 2007, 

Resolution 1, 2011, and Resolution 3, 2017 are hereby rescinded in their entireties. 

 

Section 2. The Director of Water and Sewer, or his designee, shall dissolve the 

Industrial Water Bank and the separate account in which Industrial Water Bank water 

supplies have been held distinct from the remainder of the City’s water supply portfolio. 

 

Section 3.  Any existing contractual rights associated with Industrial Water Bank water 

supplies previously granted by the City pursuant to a binding agreement with an 

identified water user shall be deemed vested and unaffected by this dissolution of the 

Industrial Water Bank. Nothing in this Joint Resolution is intended to amend the terms of 

any such agreement, or associated obligations of the City thereunder. 

 

Section 4. The Director of Water and Sewer, and his designee, are further authorized 

and directed to undertake any and all other necessary action to dissolve the Industrial 

Water Bank. 

 

Section 5. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED ON THIS ______ DAY OF ________________ 

2021. 

Page 32

Item No. 11.



 

 

ATTEST       CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 

___________________________________ ____________________________________ 

City Clerk Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST       WATER AND SEWER BOARD 

 

 

___________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Secretary Chairman 
 

Page 33

Item No. 11.



11

Industrial Water Bank 
Termination

City Council| May 4, 2021

Page 34

Item No. 11.



2

Background

• Industrial Water Bank created by Greeley City Council and Water Board Joint 

Resolution 52, 1998

• Set a water bank with a minimum balance of 500 acre feet

o Minimum balance requirement evolved over time with subsequent resolutions

o Managed as a separate supply from the rest of the City’s water supply

• To be used to assist selected industrial users by providing competitively 

priced raw water

Page 35

Item No. 11.



3

Industrial Water Bank Usage

• Customers who used Water Bank water

o Leprino (~95% of allocated water)

o Noble

o State Farm 

• Volume of Water Bank water unallocated ~ 800 acre feet

Page 36

Item No. 11.



4

Need to Terminate

• Incompatible with the Terry Ranch agreement

o Section 10.5.B states that Greeley’s cash-in-lieu price must be at least $30,000/acre foot in 

any year before December 31, 2099 or the date that Wingfoot transfers and assigns its last 

Raw Water Credit to a third party

o Greeley would have to pay liquidated damages if cash-in-lieu was less than $30,000/acre 

foot

Page 37

Item No. 11.



5

Greeley’s Raw Water Advantages

• Incentive priced raw water no longer needed

• Greeley has a water portfolio available for development

o Some providers in the region are requiring wet water supplies

• Requires developers to pay market prices

• Terry Ranch raw water credits

o Priced at an amount lower than Greeley’s cash-in-lieu, which is already lower than other 

Northern Colorado water providers

Page 38

Item No. 11.



6

Recommendation

o Adopt a Joint City Council and Water and Sewer Board Resolution 

terminating the Industrial Water Bank

• Water and Sewer Board adopted resolution at April 21, 2021 board meeting

Page 39

Item No. 11.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
May 4, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director, 970-350-9815 

   

Title:  
Consideration of a resolution authorizing entry into the First Amendment to the 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage Treatment Services between the City of 
Greeley, Colorado and the City of Evans, Colorado 

Summary: 
 

Greeley and Evans have an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) that has been in 
effect since 2002 pursuant to which Evans provides wastewater treatment services for 
Greeley customers located in the Ashcroft Draw Basin.  The only area currently served 
by this IGA within the Ashcroft Draw Basin is the St. Michael’s subdivision. The Ashcroft 
Draw basin encompasses several undeveloped lots in St. Michaels, planned 730 multi-
family units, planned 500 single family units, and approximately 615 acres of additional 
undeveloped land. The Ashcroft Draw Basin is hydraulically disconnected from areas 
of Greeley that can drain by gravity to the city’s wastewater treatment and 
reclamation facility on East 8th Street.  
 
The original IGA allows Greeley to deliver wastewater produced within the Greeley 
service area of the Ashcroft Draw Basin to Evans for treatment.  In return for its 
treatment of the wastewater from the Ashcroft Draw Basin, Evans is entitled to the 
System Development Charges (SDC) for each sewer tap in the Greeley service area 
treated by Evans, and monthly service rates consistent with rates charged to Evans 
customers of similar rate classes.  The SDC is commensurate to a plant investment fee. 
 
Greeley seeks to amend the IGA with Evans based on its plans to construct a regional 
wastewater lift station near the City’s south boundary in the Ashcroft Draw Basin. The 
change in service area is due to Evans having limited treatment capacity and an 
increase in Evans Monthly Sewer Rates as a result of recent Wastewater Plant 
expansions. The City decided that the best approach to serving the Ashcroft Draw 
Basin was to construct a Lift Station and the downstream improvements required to 
serve the area.  Once the Lift Station is constructed, all of the current wastewater flow 
from St. Michael’s and surrounding future development within the service area will be 
directed to the lift station and treated by Greeley.   
 
The current average monthly residential wastewater service bill in Greeley is $23 and in 
Evans $43.  Residents within St Michael’s are Greeley customers and are billed based 
on City of Greeley Rates.  Evans invoices the Greeley for the monthly service fees of all 
Greeley customers on the Evans wastewater system based on the Evans rate structure, 
and Greeley Water and Sewer Department pays the cost difference to Evans.   
 
The proposed Amendment to the IGA sets forth terms by which Evans will continue to 
treat wastewater from that portion of the Greeley Service Area until Greeley’s new 
Ashcroft lift station is constructed and operational.  This term of the agreement will 

Page 40

Item No. 12.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

allow approximately 200 new residential taps in Greeley to be served by Evans on a 
temporary basis, and any SDCs incurred as a result of new taps granted prior to the 
construction of the lift station, will be shared by the parties and charged based on a 
new methodology more favorable to Greeley.  The IGA Amendment further outlines 
the terms and conditions by which Evans will provide treatment services in the event of 
an emergency or operational outage that could be caused by an equipment or 
power malfunction or planned maintenance of the Ashcroft Lift Station after it is built. 
This operational backup and redundancy terms a benefit for Greeley.  
 
The Ashcroft Lift Station is exclusively for Greeley’s customers and the capital costs to 
design, permit and construct the lift station will be funded by City of Greeley.   

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 
If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? See additional comments 

What is the annual impact? See additional comments 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  412-Sewer New Construction 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Plant Investment Fees, Bonds 

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match? N/A 

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? N/A 

Additional Comments: The construction of the lift station will eliminate annual 
wastewater service payments to Evans of approximately 
$275,000.00  Once the lift station is constructed Greeley will keep 
all Plant Investment fees for new sewer taps in the Ashcroft Draw 
Basin, which are currently paid to Evans.   
The capital cost to construct the Lift Station will be funded by 
Greeley and is planned to be reimbursed by development 
through a Local Improvement District.  Water and Sewer is 
planning to approach City Council with the Local Improvement 
District Ordinance in June of 2021.  Greeley will be responsible for 
its share of the Lift Station for the existing St Michaels Subdivision.  

Legal Issues:   
Section 3-5 of the Greeley City Charter and Section 02.07.040 of the Greeley Municipal 
Code authorize the City to enter into contracts with other governmental entities for the 
performance of cooperative or joint activities. The City Attorney’s Office has reviewed 
and approved the IGA as to form. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 
The Water and Sewer Board approved the First Amendment to Intergovernmental 
Agreement for Sewage Treatment Services at its April 21, 2021 meeting, and 
recommended that the City Council approve the same. 
The City of Evans Resolution 07-2021 Approving the First Amendment to 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage Treatment Services at their April 20, 2021 
Council meeting.  

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Page 41

Item No. 12.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 
maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community; and 

Safety: Manage the public health, safety and welfare in a way that promotes a sense 
of security and well-being for residents, businesses and visitors. 

Decision Options: 
1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or
2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or
3) Deny the resolution; or
4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain.

Council’s Recommended Action: 
A motion to adopt the Resolution 

Attachments: 
Resolution 
First Amendment to IGA for Treatment Services with Evans 
Exhibit A Map  
Evans Resolution 07-2021 

Page 42

Item No. 12.



CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION ______, 2021 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ENTRY INTO THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT FOR SEWAGE TREATMENT SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

AND THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley (“Greeley”) is authorized by Section 3-5 of the Greeley City 

Charter and Section 02.07.040 of the Greeley Municipal Code to enter into contracts with 

other governmental entities for the performance of cooperative or joint activities; and 

 

WHEREAS, Greeley and the City of Evans (“Evans”) entered into that certain intergovernmental 

agreement dated October 1, 2002 (“2002 Sanitary Sewer IGA”), which set the terms and 

conditions by which Evans provides sanitary sewer treatment services to customers within a 

portion of the Greeley service area commonly known as the Ashcroft Draw Drainage Basin; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Greeley and Evans have a continued common interest in cost-effectively 

combining their sanitary sewer demand and providing high-quality sanitary sewer treatment 

services sufficient to meet present and future needs for residential, commercial, and industrial 

uses in the general vicinity of the Ashcroft Draw Drainage Basin; and 

 

WHEREAS, Greeley plans to construct a new lift station to assist in providing sanitary sewage 

treatment services to customers in portions of the Ashcroft Draw Drainage Basin, which it 

anticipates will accommodate 2.9 million gallons per day of peak flow at full build-out; and 

 

WHEREAS, Evans remains agreeable to providing sanitary sewage treatment services to 

customers in the Ashcroft Draw Drainage Basin until the Greeley Ashcroft Draw Sanitary Sewer 

Lift Station is constructed and able to facilitate service by Greeley in this area; and 

 

WHEREAS, Greeley and Evans have reached an understanding regarding the terms and 

conditions of their continued coordination on sanitary sewer treatment services in Ashcroft 

Draw Drainage Basin, and have reduced their understanding to writing in the form of an 

amendment to the 2002 Sanitary Sewer IGA attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit A (“First Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage Treatment 

Services”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Greeley Water and Sewer Board approved the First Amendment to 

Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage Treatment Services at its April 21, 2021 meeting and 

recommended that the City Council approve the same; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Greeley for the City to continue its 

coordination on sanitary sewer treatment services with the City of Evans by entry into the First 

Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage Treatment Services. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City of Greeley, Colorado is hereby authorized to enter into the First 

Page 43

Item No. 12.



Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage Treatment Services, in the form 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 

 

Section 2. City staff and legal counsel are hereby authorized to make minor revisions to the 

First Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage Treatment Services, provided 

that the material substance of the agreement remains unchanged. 

 

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _______________ 2021. 

 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 

________________________________________ _________________________________________ 

City Clerk Mayor 

Page 44

Item No. 12.



Page 45

Item No. 12.



Page 46

Item No. 12.

jkamka
Mayor Rudy

jkamka
Julie Kamka

jkamka
City Seal



Page 47

Item No. 12.



Page 48

Item No. 12.



Page 49

Item No. 12.



Page 50

Item No. 12.



Page 51

Item No. 12.



Page 52

Item No. 12.



Page 53

Item No. 12.



Page 54

Item No. 12.



Page 55

Item No. 12.



Page 56

Item No. 12.



P
age 57

Item
 N

o. 12.



Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 
Sewer Treatment Services

Greeley and Evans
(Ashcroft Lift Station)

Presented to City Council

May 4, 2021
Page 58

Item No. 12.



Purpose for Amending IGA for Sewer 

Treatment Services

• Amend IGA Based on Planned Changes in Ashcroft Sewer Drainage Area (Ashcroft Lift Station)

• Amend System Development Charges that are more favorable to Greeley

• Provide Emergency Overflow Conveyance and Treatment for Ashcroft Lift Station

• Allow for Taps on temporary basis until Ashcroft Lift Station is constructed

Page 59

Item No. 12.



Existing IGA Sewer Treatment Services

St. Michaels 
Subdivision

Sewer Connection 
to Evans

• St Michaels Subdivision currently served by Evans, 

under Existing IGA. from 2002

• Current IGA Limitations
o No more than 200 residential taps

o Additional taps require Evans approval 

o Evans has Limited Treatment Capacity 

o Greeley collects SDC and paid to Evans 

o St Michaels residents are Greeley Customers and billed 

accordingly 

o Greeley W&S pays the difference in rates (Evans-

$43/month) (Greeley-$23/month)

Page 60

Item No. 12.



Ashcroft Lift Station Service Area

Evans Ashcroft 
Draw Sewer Main

Lift Station 
Service Area

Proposed Lift 
Station Site

• Undeveloped Parcels in St 

Michaels - (2) Residential and (1) 

Commercial Lot

• 730 Multi Family Units 

(Estimated 1st Building Permit on 

June 2022)

• Approximately 715 Ac of 

Undeveloped Land

Page 61

Item No. 12.



Ashcroft Lift Station Improvements

Proposed 6” and 
12” Force Main 

Proposed Lift 
Station Site

Proposed 18” 
Gravity Sewer

Existing 18” Sewer    
St Michaels Outfall 

to Evans

Existing 18” 
Gravity Sewer

Lift Station 

• Capacity of 2.9 MGD, Below Grade Dry Pit and Wet Pit, 

Odor Control, Force Main & Gravity Sewer

• Emergency Gravity Overflow to Evans (Evans IGA 

Amendment)

Ashcroft Lift Station Project Schedule
• 90% Construction Drawings - April 2021

• CMAR Guaranteed Maximum Price - May 2021

• Easement and Land Acquisition

o Negotiated Acquisition – May to June 2021

o Condemnation - October 2021 

• Local Improvement District (LID) Ordinance – June 2021

• Construction anticipated start of July or November (dependent 

on land acquisitions) - 7 month duration

Page 62

Item No. 12.



IGA Amendment
Proposed Amendments of the Existing IGA

• Prior to Ashcroft Draw Lift Station
o Grants up to 650 residential taps 

o System Development Charge (SDC) for new taps paid monthly at 4.17 percent of total 

SDC (50% of SDC paid in 12 months) 

o After 5-years if Lift Station is not constructed the remaining 50% of SDC due. 

• After Ashcroft Lift Station

o Evans to Provide Emergency Overflow Conveyance and Treatment

• Scheduled for Evans City Council April 20th

Page 63

Item No. 12.



IGA Benefits

IGA Benefits to Greeley

• Increases number of new taps allowed at a temporary reduced rate

• Permanent Lift Station Emergency Overflow and Operational Flexibility 

• Eliminates Onsite Emergency Storage required by CDPHE.  
o A 50’x50’x13’ vault difficult fit on the proposed site

o Estimated Cost Savings $400,000 (No Emergency Storage)

Page 64

Item No. 12.



Recommendation

• Staff recommends that the City Council Approve the 1st Amendment to 

Intergovernmental Agreement for Sewage Treatment Services

Page 65

Item No. 12.



Questions?

9

Page 66

Item No. 12.



10

Lift Station Site

Lift Station 
Site

6” and 12” 
Force Main

Existing 18” Sewer    
St Michaels Outfall 

to Evans

Page 67

Item No. 12.



11

Concept Landscape Plan - Lift Station Site

Lift Station 
Location

Access 
Road

Lift Station 
Location

Lift Station 
Location

Page 68

Item No. 12.



12

Wet Pit/Dry Pit

Page 69

Item No. 12.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021  

 

Title 

Pulled Consent Agenda Items 

                                 

Page 70

Item No. 13.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
May 4, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Sean Chambers, Water & Sewer Director, 970-350-9815 

  

Title:  

Public hearing and final reading of an Ordinance authorizing the sale of an easement 

over approximately 11.56 acres of City-owned property, located in Section 4, Township 

7 North, Range 66 West of the 6th P.M. in Weld County (“Balmer Farm”) 

Summary: 
 

The City owns a property located at Section 4, Township 7 North, Range 66 West of the 

6th P.M. in Weld County known as the Balmer Farm, which was purchased by the Water 

and Sewer Department for certain water rights attached to the farm.  The property is 

currently leased for farming operations that supports the value of the water rights in 

advance of their district court case to change the decreed use from agricultural to 

municipal uses 

 

In February of 2021, the City received a request for an easement on the Balmer Farm 

from the Public Service Company of Colorado.  The proposed easement is for a power 

line and would be along the Northern border of the property, taking up approximately 

11.56 acres.  Impacts to the farming operation would be minimal and have been 

reviewed with and by the City’s tenant farmer.   Public Service Company of Colorado 

has agreed to address any damages to city property, to complete land and 

vegetation restoration in the disturbed areas, and to compensate the tenant farmer 

for any crop losses. They will pay $28,900 for an option agreement and then another 

$260,100 for the easement purchase price.  The total proposed offer amount of 

$289,000 was found to be in alignment with recent available valuation data. 

 

The Water and Sewer Board will consider a resolution for approval of the proposed 

easement at its April 21, 2021 regular Board meeting.   This ordinance was introduced 

at the April 20, 2021 Council meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? Yes 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact? $289,000 revenue received 

What is the annual impact? None 

What fund of the City will provide Funding?  424 - Water Acquisition 

(revenue received) 

What is the source of revenue within the fund? Cash-In-Lieu of Raw Water  

Is there grant funding for this item? No 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing? N/A 

Additional Comments:  

Page 71

Item No. 14.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Legal Issues:   

Section 17-4(c) of the City Charter requires any sale of real property, including real 

property acquired by the Water and Sewer Department with enterprise funds, be 

approved by City Council. Section 31-15-713(b) of the Colorado Revised Statutes 

authorizes the City Council to sell and dispose of, by ordinance, any real property that 

is not being used or held for a governmental purpose. 

 

Water & Sewer Dept. staff have worked with the City Attorney’s Office and the City’s 

Real Estate Division in preparation of the documents and materials related to the 

proposed easement. 

 

Consideration of this matter is a legislative process which includes the following public 

hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation (if requested) 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

4) Council discussion 

5) Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None 

Strategic Work Program Item or Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Infrastructure & Growth: Establish the capital and human infrastructure to support and 

maintain a safe, competitive, appealing and successful community. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Exhibit A (“Option Agreement”) 

Exhibit B (“Easement Grant”) 

 

Page 72

Item No. 14.



Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO  

ORDINANCE NO. __________, 2021 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF AN EASEMENT OVER APPROXIMATELY 11.56 

ACRES OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY, LOCATED IN SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 

66 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M. IN WELD COUNTY, COLORADO.  

  

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley, acting by and through its Water and Sewer Board, 

purchased certain real property in December 2016, consisting of approximately 138.459 

acres and located in Section 4, Township 7 North, Range 66 West of the 6th P.M. in Weld 

County (“Balmer Farm”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has leased the Balmer Farm back to a tenant farmer since its 

acquisition to keep it in agricultural production; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City received an offer from Public Service Company of Colorado to 

purchase an electrical transmission line easement over approximately 11.56 acres of 

the Balmer Farm (“Easement”), and said offer was determined to be fair market value; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Greeley Water and Sewer Board authorized the anticipated sale 

of the Easement at its April 21, 2021 regular board meeting, and recommended City 

Council authorize the same; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 17-4(c) of the City Charter requires that any sale of real property, 

including the sale of real property acquired by the Water and Sewer Department with 

enterprise funds, be approved by City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 31-15-713(b) of the Colorado Revised Statutes authorizes City Council 

to sell and dispose of, by ordinance, any real property that is not being used or held for 

a governmental purpose. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

Section 1. City Council determines that the Balmer Farm and the proposed Easement 

thereupon are not being used nor held for a governmental purpose, and that the 

Easement is surplus property unnecessary to retain for any governmental purpose. 

 

Section 2. The City Council authorizes the sale of the proposed Easement across the 

Balmer Farm, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Option Agreement 

for Easement, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A (“Option 

Agreement”). 

 

Section 3. City Council authorizes the Director of Water and Sewer, or his designee, to 

negotiate non-substantive, minor changes to the Option Agreement prior to execution, 

and to make minor amendments to the Option Agreement after execution, including 

corrections to property descriptions and contract extensions. 

Page 73

Item No. 14.



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Section 4. City Council authorizes the Director of Water and Sewer, or his designee, to 

undertake all necessary action to close upon the sale if the option in the Option 

Agreement is exercised. 

 

Section 5. Upon satisfaction of all Option Agreement terms, including any amendments 

thereto, the City Council authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to execute an easement 

grant, in the form of the Electric Transmission Line Easement attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as Exhibit B (“Easement Grant”), conveying the Easement to Public 

Service Company of Colorado.  

 

Section 6. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately after its final publication.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2021.  

 

ATTEST       CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 

______________________________________  ______________________________________ 

City Clerk      Mayor 

Page 74

Item No. 14.



Page 1 
US.106775834.04

After recording, return to: 

Public Service Company of Colorado 

Siting and Land Rights  

1800 Larimer Street, 4th Floor 

Denver, CO   80202 

Attn:  Manager 

PSCO DOC. NO._________________     

ROW AGENT: David W. Allen      

OPTION AGREEMENT FOR EASEMENT (“Option Agreement”) 

The undersigned, City of Greeley, whose address is 1000 10th Street, Greeley, Colorado 80631, herein 

called “Grantor(s)”, for and on behalf of Grantor and Grantor’s heirs, successors and assigns, in 

consideration of the payment of the Option Price and other good and valuable consideration, the adequacy 

of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant to Public Service Company of Colorado, a Colorado 

corporation, herein called “Company”, the sole and exclusive right and option (the “Option”) to purchase 

an easement for the construction, operation, and maintenance of an electric transmission line, as further 

described below, said easement to be substantially in the form attached hereto as  Exhibit B (the 

“Easement”), on the following terms and conditions: 

TERMS OF OPTION 

1. Grant of Option; Option Consideration; Terms and Option.  Grantor hereby grants to Company

the Option, from the date of signature until February 5, 2022 (the “Option Term”.) No later

than thirty (30) business days after Grantor executes and delivers this Option Agreement, the

Company shall pay to Grantor the Option Price, as set forth in Exhibit C, which Exhibit C may be

removed prior to recording.  The Option Price shall be non-refundable to the Company.

This Option is for an easement approximately one hundred and fifty (150) feet in width for an 

electric transmission line and related purposes on, over, under and across the real property owned 

by Grantor and located in Weld County, Colorado, as more particularly described in Exhibit A 

attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”) in accordance with the terms and 

conditions set forth in the Electric Transmission Line Easement attached hereto as Exhibit B (the 

“Easement”).  The location of the Easement shall be determined by Company at the time the 

Option is exercised.  

2. Exercise of Option; Easement Consideration.  The Company may exercise this Option any time

during the Option Term by written notice to Grantor (the “Notice”), which notice shall include a

description of the location of the Easement (the “Easement Area”).  Following such notice,

Grantor shall, within thirty (30) days after the Company’s exercise of the Option, execute and

deliver to the Company the Easement Agreement in the form of Exhibit B, free and clear of all

monetary liens and encumbrances covering the interests described therein, but otherwise subject

to all matters of public record.  Within thirty (30) business days after Grantor delivers the

executed Easement Agreement, the Company shall pay to Grantor the Easement Purchase Price

set forth in Exhibit C.

3. Right of Entry.  During the Option Term and prior to the Notice of exercise of this Option,

Company, its employees, agents, contractors and representatives shall have the right and license

to enter upon the Property for the purpose of doing all those things which the Company deems

Exhibit A to the Ordinance

Page 75

Item No. 14.

mailto:tabutler@viawest.net


 

 

Page 2 
US.106775834.04 

necessary to study, survey, inspect, test and plan for the Company’s proposed use of the Property, 

including but not limited to, soil borings, conducting a hazardous substances investigation and 

conducting a feasibility study which may cover such subjects as soil conditions, geological tests, 

engineering reports, topographic studies, flood protection, environmental impact reports, zoning 

and planning regulations, and any other tests and studies which the Company may elect to 

perform on the Property, all at the sole cost and expense of the Company. 

 

4. Damage.  In the event entry upon the Property by the Company pursuant to paragraph 3 hereof 

causes any damage to the Property, including to road improvements and fences from time to time 

existing thereon, the Company shall, at its option, either restore such damaged portion of the 

Property to substantially the same condition as existed prior to entry by the Company, or 

compensate Grantor for the damage. 

 

5. Encumbrances and Leases.  During the Option Term, Grantor will not sell, contract to sell, assign, 

lease, or otherwise transfer or encumber the Property, except subject to the Company’s rights 

under this Option Agreement.  In no event during the Term, will Grantor grant a license, 

easement, option, leasehold, or other right to the Property which could interfere with the rights of 

the Company under this Option Agreement or the Easement Agreement. 

 

6. Cooperation.  Grantor shall assist and cooperate with Company, in complying with or obtaining 

any land use permits, approvals or similar requirements Company deems necessary or desirable to 

install and operate facilities under the Easement Agreement, pursuant to any governmental, quasi-

governmental or private requirements, covenants or restrictions. Grantor’s cooperation includes 

the execution of applications and other necessary documentation, and appearance at community 

meetings and/or public hearings at the request of Company to voice support for any application at 

issue. Grantor grants Company the right to act as Grantor's agent in making applications for 

permits or approvals in Grantor’s name in those instances where only the owner of record of the 

Property can apply for the same.  Grantor’s assistance and cooperation under this paragraph will 

be without charge to the Company, provided Grantor will not be obligated to incur any out-of-

pocket costs in connection therewith. 

 

7. Default.  If Grantor fails to execute and deliver the Easement Agreement following exercise of 

the Option by the Company, Grantor will be in default, and in addition to any other remedy 

available to Company, Grantor will be liable to Company for attorney fees and costs incurred by 

the Company in enforcing this Option Agreement. 

 

8. Recording of Option.   Grantor will not file or record this Option Agreement in the Clerk and 

Recorder’s office of the County in which the Property is located or any other public records 

(collectively “Official Records”).  This Option Agreement may be recorded by the Company in 

the Official Records, it being agreed that the Company may remove Exhibit C from the Option 

Agreement prior to recording.  Although removed, Exhibit “C” shall remain part of this Option 

Agreement and such removal shall not affect the validity hereof.  In the event the Option is 

exercised, Company shall have the right to record a Notice of Exercise of Option in the Official 

Records stating that the Option has been exercised and including the terms of the Easement 

Agreement. 

 

9. Notices.  All notices, demands and requests required or permitted to be delivered under this 

Option Agreement (collectively “Notices”) to a party pursuant to this Option Agreement must be 

in writing and shall be sent by United States certified mail, prepaid, return receipt requested; 

Page 76

Item No. 14.



 

 

Page 3 
US.106775834.04 

personal delivery; or overnight courier service.  For purposes of giving Notices hereunder, the 

addresses of the parties, until changed as hereinafter provided, are the following: 

 

Grantor(s): 

 

 Company: 

City of Greeley 

Lindsay Kuntz  

 Public Service Company of Colorado 

1800 Larimer Street, 4th Floor 

1000 10th Street 

Greeley, Colorado 80631 

 Denver, CO 80202 

Attn:  Manager, Siting and Land Rights 

   

 Notices shall be deemed to have been given (a) on the date personally delivered to the party 

intended, (b) the third business day after being sent by United States certified mail, prepaid, 

return receipt requested, or (c) the next business day after being sent by overnight courier. 

 

10. Binding Effect and Covenants of Grantor.  This Option Agreement shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the respective assignees, heirs, successors, and legal representatives of each 

party.  Grantor represents and warrants to the Company that Grantor is the sole owner of the 

Property and has the unrestricted right and authority to execute this Option Agreement and to 

grant to the Company the rights granted hereunder, subject to no liens or encumbrances except as 

disclosed in writing to the Company prior to the execution of this Option Agreement.   

 

11. Cancellation.  Company shall have the right to cancel this Option at any time by providing 

written Notice to Grantor.  In the event this Option is cancelled, Company shall record a notice of 

such termination in the real estate records of Weld County, Colorado if the Company has 

previously recorded a copy of this Agreement.   

 

12. Miscellaneous.  The Option and all rights, title and privileges herein granted shall be assignable 

by the Company in whole or in part; the provisions of this Option Agreement shall run with, be 

binding on and burden the Property and shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the 

heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of Grantor and 

Company.  “Grantor” shall include the singular, plural, feminine, masculine, and neuter.  The title 

of this document and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not define or 

limit the rights granted pursuant to this Option Agreement. 

 

13. Time Calculation.  In computing any period of time described in this Option Agreement, the day 

of the act or event after which the designated period of time begins to run is not to be included 

and the last day of the period so computed is to be included, unless such last day is not a Business 

Day, in which event the period shall run until the end of the next day which is a Business Day.  

As used herein, the term “Business Day” means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal 

holiday for national banks in Denver, Colorado. 

 

14. Modification.  No change or modification of this Option Agreement shall be valid unless it is in 

writing and signed by Grantor and an authorized representative of the Company.  This Option 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and 

which together will constitute one instrument. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77

Item No. 14.



 

 

Page 4 
US.106775834.04 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed this instrument. 

 

THE CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

a Colorado home rule municipal corporation 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

By:____________________________  By:_____________________________ 

 Mayor       City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO  SUBSTANCE: 

 

 

By: _______________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 City Manager Chairman, Water and Sewer Board 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF 

FUNDS: 

 

 

By: ________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 City Attorney      Director of Finance 

 

 

 

Date:_____________ 

 
 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

     ) 

COUNTY OF WELD   ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of _______________,  

 

2021, by __________________________ as _________________________________ for the City of  

 

Greeley, Colorado. 

 

Witness my hand and seal: 

 

Page 78

Item No. 14.



 

 

Page 5 
US.106775834.04 

 

My commission expires:           

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Company:  

 

Public Service Company of Colorado, a Colorado corporation 

 

By: _______________________________ 

 

Name: _____________________________ 

 

Its: ________________________________ 

 

Date:_______________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

     ) 

COUNTY OF DENVER  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of _________, 2021, by  

                     as       of Public Service Company of 

Colorado, a Colorado corporation. 

 

Witness my hand and seal. 

My commission expires:           

       Notary Public 

Page 79

Item No. 14.



 

1-1 
US.106775834.04 

EXHIBIT A 

THE PROPERTY 

 

(See attached) 

  

Page 80

Item No. 14.



Page 81

Item No. 14.



Page 82

Item No. 14.



Page 83

Item No. 14.



Page 84

Item No. 14.



 

2-1 
US.106775834.04 

EXHIBIT B 

THE EASEMENT 

 

 

(See attached) 

 

 

Page 85

Item No. 14.



1 
 

 
 
After recording, return to: 
Public Service Company of Colorado 
Siting and Land Rights 
1800 Larimer Street, 4th Floor 
Denver, CO   80202 
Attn:  Manager 
 

PSCO DOC. NO:_____________        
ROW AGENT: David W. Allen 

 
 

ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION LINE EASEMENT 
 
The undersigned, City of Greeley, whose address is 1000 10th Street, Greeley, Colorado 80631 
(“Grantors”), for good and valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy of which is acknowledged, 
hereby grants, sells, and conveys to PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF COLORADO, a Colorado 
corporation, with an address of 1800 Larimer Street, Suite 400, Denver, Colorado 80202 (the 
“Company”), an electric transmission line easement more particularly described as follows: 
 
A perpetual non-exclusive easement for the transmission and distribution of electricity and related 
communication signals on, over, under, and across the following described premises: 
 

SEE EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED 
HEREIN BY THIS REFERENCE  (the “Easement Area”), 

 
Together with the full right and authority in the Company and its agents, employees and contractors to 
enter the  Easement Area at all times to: (1) survey, mark and sign the Easement Area or the Facilities (as 
defined below); (2) construct, install, operate, repair, remove, replace, reconstruct, alter, relocate, patrol, 
inspect, improve, enlarge, and maintain electric transmission and distribution lines and related 
communication facilities, including towers, poles, and other supports; together with braces, guys, 
anchors, cross-arms, cables, conduits, wires, conductors, manholes, transformers, and other fixtures, 
devices, and appurtenances used or useful in connection therewith (collectively the “Facilities”); (3)  cut, 
fell, prune or otherwise control, all trees, brush, and other vegetation on or overhanging the Easement 
Area; and (4) use the Easement Area for  reasonable ingress and egress for personnel, equipment and 
vehicles. 
 
No temporary or permanent wells, buildings, or structures (including without limitation mobile homes or 
trailers) shall be placed or permitted to remain on, under, or over the Easement Area by Grantor.  No 
other objects shall be erected, placed, or permitted to remain on, under, or over the Easement Area by 
Grantor, including trees, shrubs and fences, that may interfere with the Facilities or interfere with the 
exercise of any of the rights granted pursuant to this Electric Transmission Line Easement (this 
“Easement”).   
 
Subject to the restrictions and limitations set forth herein, Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement 
Area for any purpose which does not interfere with or endanger the Facilities or interfere with the 
Company’s use of the Easement Area as provided for herein.  Grantor shall expressly have the right to 
cultivate crops within the Easement in any manner which does not interfere with Grantor’s exercise of its 
rights granted in this Easement and to cross the Easement Area with roads and utilities, provided that 
such roads and utilities do not materially interfere with the rights granted to Company in this Easement. 

Page 86

Item No. 14.



 
 
Non-use or a limited use of the Easement Area shall not prevent the Company from thereafter making use 
of the Easement Area to the full extent authorized.  Following completion of construction or renovation 
of its Facilities on the Easement Area, the Company shall restore the surface of the Easement Area to as 
near a condition as existed prior to such work as is reasonably practicable, taking into account, among 
other things, the existence of the Facilities and the restrictions stated herein, including prohibitions or 
limitations on structures, trees, shrubs, and other objects.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Company’s 
failure to use the Easement for a period of three (3) consecutive years shall be deemed an abandonment 
of the Easement, and this Easement shall terminate except for those provisions which expressly survive 
termination. Non-use of the Easement shall not constitute abandonment if such non-use is a result of Acts 
of God (including fire, flood, earthquake, storm, or other natural disaster), war, invasion, act of foreign 
enemies, insurrection, acts of terrorism, rules or regulations promulgated by any governmental body, or 
any other event over which the Company has no control.  Company’s work in actively seeking regulatory 
approval or permits related to its Facilities will not be deemed abandonment. 
 
No amendment, modification or supplement of this Easement shall be binding on the Company unless 
made in writing and executed by an authorized representative of the Company.  No waiver by the 
Company of any provision hereof shall be deemed to have been made unless made in writing and signed 
by an authorized representative of the Company. No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or 
remedy accruing to the Company upon any breach shall impair such right or remedy or be construed as a 
waiver of any such breach or of a subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition 
herein contained.   
 
The provisions of this Easement shall run with the land and shall be binding on and burden the Easement 
Area and shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of all persons claiming an interest in the 
Easement Area, or any portion thereof, through the parties hereto, including the heirs, executors, personal 
representatives, successors, and assigns of the parties.  “Grantor” shall include the singular, plural, 
feminine, masculine and neuter. 
 
Grantor represents that it has the right to grant the easement and rights contained herein. This grant is 
binding on Grantor, is not conditioned upon obtaining consent from any third parties, and is not subject 
to any mortgages or liens, except those for which Grantor has provided the Company with a consent and 
subordination agreement.   
 
The Company shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes 
of action and damages, including reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation costs (“Claims”), arising out of 
Company negligence or willful misconduct in its exercise of its rights granted to Company under this 
Easement., Company shall have no duty to indemnify or hold Grantor harmless for and to the extent of 
Claims arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of Grantor.   The foregoing obligations shall 
survive termination of this Agreement. 
      
This Easement incorporates all agreements between the parties as to the subject matter of this Easement 
and no prior representations or statements, verbal or written, shall modify or supplement the terms of this 
Easement.  This Easement consists of the document entitled “Electric Transmission Line Easement” and 
an Exhibit containing a legal description and a sketch depicting the legal description if referenced above 
or attached hereto.  No other exhibit, addendum, schedule, or other attachment (collectively 
“Addendum”) is authorized by the Company, and no Addendum shall be effective and binding upon the 
Company unless executed by an authorized representative of the Company. 
 

Page 87

Item No. 14.



 
 
Executed and delivered this    day of     , 202___. 
 
CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 
a Colorado home rule municipal corporation  

 

       ATTEST: 

 

By:  _________________________________   By:__________________________________ 

  Mayor      City Clerk 

  

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )ss. 

COUNTY OF WELD ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ____________, 202__ by 

__________________________________, as ___________________________________ for the City of  

Greeley, Colorado. 

Witness my hand and official seal: 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires: _________________ ____________________________ 
 Notary Public 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 88

Item No. 14.



 

3-1 
US.106775834.04 

EXHIBIT C 

COMPENSATION 

 

[TO BE REMOVED PRIOR TO RECORDING] 
 

This Exhibit C is a part of the Option Agreement between Company and Grantor, notwithstanding that it 

is to be detached from the Option Agreement prior to recording.     

 

Company and Grantor(s) agree as follows:   

 

1. The “Option Price” shall be a one-time payment in the amount of $28,900.00, payable within 

thirty  (30) business days following execution of the Option Agreement by Grantor. 

2. The Option Price is exclusive of the “Easement Purchase Price.” 

3. The “Easement Purchase Price” shall be a one-time payment in an amount equal to $25,000.00 

per acre of the Easement Area (prorated for partial acres), based on the acreage set forth in the 

legal description prepared by Company and delivered to Grantor(s) at the time of the exercise of 

the Option, along with compensation for temporary use of pull pockets, as required by 

construction, in the amount of $260,100.00.   

4. Grantor agrees to keep the terms of this Exhibit C confidential, and not to disclose such terms to 

any third party except to the extent required by applicable law, or to the extent necessary to obtain 

legal or tax advice, or to a mortgagee or purchaser of the Property. 

5. Grantor and Company have separately initialed the provisions contained in this Exhibit C in the 

spaces provided below.  

 

 

City of Greeley 

 

By: ______________________________ 

 

Name: ____________________________ 

 

Its: _______________________________ 

 

Date:______________________________ 

 

 Public Service Company of Colorado 

A Colorado Corporation 

By: _______________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Its: _______________________________ 

Date:_______________________________ 

 

 

Page 89

Item No. 14.



1 

After recording, return to: 

Public Service Company of Colorado 

Siting and Land Rights 

1800 Larimer Street, 4th Floor 

Denver, CO   80202 

Attn:  Manager 

PSCO DOC. NO:_____________  

ROW AGENT: David W. Allen 

ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION LINE EASEMENT 

The undersigned, City of Greeley, whose address is 1000 10th Street, Greeley, Colorado 80631 

(“Grantors”), for good and valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy of which is acknowledged, 

hereby grants, sells, and conveys to PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF COLORADO, a Colorado 

corporation, with an address of 1800 Larimer Street, Suite 400, Denver, Colorado 80202 (the 

“Company”), an electric transmission line easement more particularly described as follows: 

A perpetual non-exclusive easement for the transmission and distribution of electricity and related 

communication signals on, over, under, and across the following described premises: 

SEE EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED 

HEREIN BY THIS REFERENCE  (the “Easement Area”), 

Together with the full right and authority in the Company and its agents, employees and contractors to 

enter the  Easement Area at all times to: (1) survey, mark and sign the Easement Area or the Facilities (as 

defined below); (2) construct, install, operate, repair, remove, replace, reconstruct, alter, relocate, patrol, 

inspect, improve, enlarge, and maintain electric transmission and distribution lines and related 

communication facilities, including towers, poles, and other supports; together with braces, guys, 

anchors, cross-arms, cables, conduits, wires, conductors, manholes, transformers, and other fixtures, 

devices, and appurtenances used or useful in connection therewith (collectively the “Facilities”); (3)  cut, 

fell, prune or otherwise control, all trees, brush, and other vegetation on or overhanging the Easement 

Area; and (4) use the Easement Area for  reasonable ingress and egress for personnel, equipment and 

vehicles. 

No temporary or permanent wells, buildings, or structures (including without limitation mobile homes or 

trailers) shall be placed or permitted to remain on, under, or over the Easement Area by Grantor.  No 

other objects shall be erected, placed, or permitted to remain on, under, or over the Easement Area by 

Grantor, including trees, shrubs and fences, that may interfere with the Facilities or interfere with the 

exercise of any of the rights granted pursuant to this Electric Transmission Line Easement (this 

“Easement”).   

Subject to the restrictions and limitations set forth herein, Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement 

Area for any purpose which does not interfere with or endanger the Facilities or interfere with the 

Company’s use of the Easement Area as provided for herein.  Grantor shall expressly have the right to 

cultivate crops within the Easement in any manner which does not interfere with Grantor’s exercise of its 

rights granted in this Easement and to cross the Easement Area with roads and utilities, provided that 

such roads and utilities do not materially interfere with the rights granted to Company in this Easement. 

Exhibit B to the Ordinance

Page 90

Item No. 14.



 

 

 

 

Non-use or a limited use of the Easement Area shall not prevent the Company from thereafter making use 

of the Easement Area to the full extent authorized.  Following completion of construction or renovation 

of its Facilities on the Easement Area, the Company shall restore the surface of the Easement Area to as 

near a condition as existed prior to such work as is reasonably practicable, taking into account, among 

other things, the existence of the Facilities and the restrictions stated herein, including prohibitions or 

limitations on structures, trees, shrubs, and other objects.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Company’s 

failure to use the Easement for a period of three (3) consecutive years shall be deemed an abandonment 

of the Easement, and this Easement shall terminate except for those provisions which expressly survive 

termination. Non-use of the Easement shall not constitute abandonment if such non-use is a result of Acts 

of God (including fire, flood, earthquake, storm, or other natural disaster), war, invasion, act of foreign 

enemies, insurrection, acts of terrorism, rules or regulations promulgated by any governmental body, or 

any other event over which the Company has no control.  Company’s work in actively seeking regulatory 

approval or permits related to its Facilities will not be deemed abandonment. 

 

No amendment, modification or supplement of this Easement shall be binding on the Company unless 

made in writing and executed by an authorized representative of the Company.  No waiver by the 

Company of any provision hereof shall be deemed to have been made unless made in writing and signed 

by an authorized representative of the Company. No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or 

remedy accruing to the Company upon any breach shall impair such right or remedy or be construed as a 

waiver of any such breach or of a subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition 

herein contained.   

 

The provisions of this Easement shall run with the land and shall be binding on and burden the Easement 

Area and shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of all persons claiming an interest in the 

Easement Area, or any portion thereof, through the parties hereto, including the heirs, executors, personal 

representatives, successors, and assigns of the parties.  “Grantor” shall include the singular, plural, 

feminine, masculine and neuter. 

 

Grantor represents that it has the right to grant the easement and rights contained herein. This grant is 

binding on Grantor, is not conditioned upon obtaining consent from any third parties, and is not subject 

to any mortgages or liens, except those for which Grantor has provided the Company with a consent and 

subordination agreement.   

 

The Company shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes 

of action and damages, including reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation costs (“Claims”), arising out of 

Company negligence or willful misconduct in its exercise of its rights granted to Company under this 

Easement., Company shall have no duty to indemnify or hold Grantor harmless for and to the extent of 

Claims arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of Grantor.   The foregoing obligations shall 

survive termination of this Agreement. 

      

This Easement incorporates all agreements between the parties as to the subject matter of this Easement 

and no prior representations or statements, verbal or written, shall modify or supplement the terms of this 

Easement.  This Easement consists of the document entitled “Electric Transmission Line Easement” and 

an Exhibit containing a legal description and a sketch depicting the legal description if referenced above 

or attached hereto.  No other exhibit, addendum, schedule, or other attachment (collectively 

“Addendum”) is authorized by the Company, and no Addendum shall be effective and binding upon the 

Company unless executed by an authorized representative of the Company. 

 

Page 91

Item No. 14.



 

 

 

 

Executed and delivered this    day of     , 202___. 

 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

a Colorado home rule municipal corporation  

 

       ATTEST: 

 

By:  _________________________________   By:__________________________________ 

  Mayor      City Clerk 

  

 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 

 )ss. 

COUNTY OF WELD ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ____________, 202__ by 

__________________________________, as ___________________________________ for the City of  

Greeley, Colorado. 

Witness my hand and official seal: 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires: _________________ ____________________________ 

 Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92

Item No. 14.



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93

Item No. 14.



 

 

CONSENT AND SUBORDINATION 

 

This Consent and Subordination is executed by________________________________, a 

_____________________________ (“Lender”), for the benefit of Public Service Company of 

Colorado, a Colorado corporation (“Grantee”). 

 

A. Lender is the current beneficiary of, and owner of the evidence of debt secured by, that 

certain deed of trust or mortgage recorded in the real estate records in the office of the Clerk 

and Recorder of ________________ County, Colorado on ____________at 

_____________________________________________________(Book and Page or 

Reception Number as Applicable) (the “Mortgage”). 

 

B. The real property encumbered by the Mortgage includes the Easement Area as described in 

the foregoing Electric Transmission Line Easement.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is acknowledged, the Lender agrees as follows: 

 

Lender consents to the foregoing Electric Transmission Line Easement and agrees and confirms for 

itself and its successors and assigns that the lien of the Mortgage and other rights and interests of the 

Lender in the Easement Area are subject and subordinate to the Electric Transmission Line 

Easement.  In the event of a foreclosure of the Mortgage and a sale of the property that is subject to 

the Mortgage pursuant to such foreclosure, the rights of Grantee acquired by virtue of the Electric 

Transmission Line Easement shall not be affected thereby. 

    __________________________________________ 

 

    By:       

Name:       

Its:       

 

 

STATE OF __________________  ) 

      ) ss 

COUNTY OF________________  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________ 20___ 

by ________________________________ as _____________________________________ of 

_______________________________________, a ____________________________ corporation.  

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

My Commission expires:____________ 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

               Notary Public 

 
 

Page 94

Item No. 14.



Page 95

Item No. 14.



Page 96

Item No. 14.



Page 97

Item No. 14.



Page 98

Item No. 14.



Request for an Easement on 
Balmer Farm Property 

Presented to Greeley City Council

By Greeley Water & Sewer Dept.

April 20, 2021

Page 99

Item No. 14.



Balmer Farm Property Location

Balmer Farm

Page 100

Item No. 14.



Balmer Farm Property Easement

• Public Service Company of Colorado requests an 

easement for an above ground electric transmission line 

through the City of Greeley property known as the Balmer

Farm

• Easement would be 150 feet in width along the northern 

board of the farm and cover approximately 11.56 acres 

• Grantee will compensate the city for land 

damages and the tenant farmer for impacts to 

crops
Page 101

Item No. 14.



Balmer Farm Easement 

Page 102

Item No. 14.



Balmer Farm Easement 

• Compensation

o Option price: $28,900 

• Easement purchase price: $260,100 

• Total compensation: $289,000

• Benefits:

o Sale of easement will offset Water and Sewer cost 

of service and could be re-appropriated for 

additional investments in water rights
Page 103

Item No. 14.



Questions?

Page 104

Item No. 14.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
May 4, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, 970-350-9786 

  Caleb Jackson, Planner, 970-350-9876 

Title:  

Public hearing to consider a change of zone from R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A 

(Holding Agriculture) to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) zoning with a Development 

Concept Master Plan for approximately 12.98 acres of property located at 7001 28th 

Street, known as the 7001 28th Street Rezone, and final reading of an ordinance 

changing the official zoning map to reflect the same 

Summary: 
 

The subject site is zoned R-E (Residential Estate) zone district and is developed with a 

church and manufactured home. Some right-of-way adjacent to the church property 

is zoned H-A (Holding Agriculture), and is also within the proposed rezone boundary. 

The site was developed in 2001, prior to annexation. The site was annexed in the 2002 

and was zoned R-E at that time. The applicant is requesting to rezone to C-H 

(Commercial High Intensity) with a Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) that 

restricts most land uses from the site because the applicant intends to continue using 

the site as a church. Other uses not restricted by the DCMP include telecommunication 

uses, utility uses, oil and gas extraction, and uses commonly associated with churches 

such as childcare, preschools, and schools. Any additional uses would require an 

amendment to the DCMP. 

 

The Planning Commission considered this request on March 23, 2021 and unanimously 

recommended approval to City Council.  

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? No 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

 

 

Page 105

Item No. 15.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Legal Issues:   

Consideration of this matter is a quasi-judicial process which includes the following 

public hearing steps: 

1) City staff presentation 

2) Council questions of staff 

3) Applicant presentation 

4) Council questions of applicant 

5) Public input (hearing opened, testimony - up to three minutes per person, 

hearing closed) 

6) Rebuttal, if requested 

7) Council discussion 

8)      Council decision 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None noted. 

Strategic Work Program Item or Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Development Code standards. 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the ordinance as presented; or 

2) Amend the ordinance and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the ordinance; or 

4) Continue consideration of the ordinance to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

Two motions are recommended: 

 

A)  A motion that, based on the application received and the project summary and 

accompanying analysis, the proposed rezone from R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A 

(Holding Agriculture) to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) with a Development 

Concept Master Plan meets Development Code Section 18.30.050(c)(3) a, b, f, g 

and h [to be re-codified as Section 24-625(c)(3) a, b, f, g and h]; and, therefore, the 

rezoning is approved. 

B) A motion to adopt the ordinance and publish with reference to title only. 

 

 

Attachments: 

Ordinance 

Planning Commission Minutes-Draft (March 23, 2021) 

Planning Commission Summary (Staff Report) (March 23, 2021) 

PowerPoint Presentation 

Page 106

Item No. 15.



 CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 ORDINANCE NO. _______, 2021 

 CASE NO. ZON2020-0010 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF GREELEY, 

COLORADO, FROM R-E (RESIDENTIAL ESTATE) AND H-A (HOLDING AGRICULTURE) TO C-H 

(COMMERCIAL HIGH INTENSITY) ZONING WITH A DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT MASTER PLAN 

FOR APPROXIMATELY 12.98 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7001 28TH STREET, KNOWN 

AS THE 7001 28TH STREET REZONE 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO: 

 

Section 1.  The following described property located in the City of Greeley is needed for 

a Development Concept Master Plan.  The change in zone would be from the zoning 

district referred to as R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A (Holding Agriculture) to C-H 

(Commercial High Intensity) for approximately 12.98 acres of property in the City of 

Greeley, County of Weld, State of Colorado: 

 

See attached legal description (Exhibit A) 

 

Section 2.  The boundaries of the pertinent zoning districts as shown on the official 

zoning map require a change to accomplish the above-described zoning changes.    

 

Section 3. This ordinance shall become effective five (5) days after its final publication 

as provided by the Greeley City Charter. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2021. 

 

ATTEST    CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

 

________________________________ ___________________________________ 

City Clerk   Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Page 107

Item No. 15.



Exhibit A 

Legal Description 

 

A parcel of land being Amended Lot 2 of the Resubdivision of Lots 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7, 

Block 1, Peterson Alexander Subdivision S-518, recorded on January 30, 2001 at 

Reception No. 2822174 within the Records of the Weld County Clerk and Recorder 

together with adjacent road rights-of-way for 71st Avenue, 28th Street and U.S. Highway 

34 Bypass as shown on the Faith Tabernacle Annexation, recorded July 08, 2002 at 

Reception No. 2966960 within the Records of the Weld County Clerk and Recorder, 

situate in the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4SW1/4) of Section 

Sixteen (16), and the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NW1/4NW1/4) of 

Section Twenty-one (21), both of Township Five North (T.5N), Range Sixty-six West 

(R.66W) of the 6th P.M., City of Greeley, County of Weld, State of Colorado, being more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

 

BEGINNING at the Southwest Corner of said section 16 as monumented by a 3.25" Brass 

Cap LS illegible and assuming the West line of the Southwest Quarter of said section 16 

as monumented by a #6 rebar with 3.25" Aluminum Cap LS 28259 at the North end, to 

bear North 00° 31' 34" West being a grid bearing of the Colorado State Plane 

Coordinate System, North Zone, North American Datum 1983, a distance of 2655.57 feet 

with all other bearings contained hereon relative thereto: 

 

The lineal dimensions as contained herein are based upon the U.S. Survey Foot. 

 

Thence along said Westerly extension of the North line and along the North and East 

line of said Amended Lot 2 and along the Southerly extension of the East line of said 

Amended Lot 2 the following Six (6) courses and distances; 

 

THENCE North 00°31'34" West along said West line of the Southwest Quarter a distance 

of 980.63 feet to the Westerly extension of the North line of said Amended Lot 2; 

THENCE North 89°27'01" East a distance of 289.80 feet; 

THENCE South 81°02'53" East a distance of 60.80 feet; 

THENCE North 89°26'36" East a distance of 228.69 feet; 

THENCE South 00°30'20" East a distance of 428.18 feet; 

THENCE South 89°30'47" West a distance of 139.92 feet; 

THENCE South 00°26'30" East a distance of 713.18 feet to the approximate Southerly 

Right-Of-Way line of Highway 34 as delineated within said Faith Tabernacle Annexation; 

 

Thence along said approximate Southerly Right-Of-Way line of the Highway 34 the 

following Three (3) courses and distances; 

 

THENCE South 89°31'36" West a distance of 354.21 feet; 

THENCE South 44°32'10" West a distance of 70.69 feet; 

THENCE South 89°31'36" West a distance of 30.00 feet to the West line of the Northwest 

Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 21; 

THENCE North 01°19'46" West along said West line of the Northwest Quarter of the 

Northwest Quarter a distance of 220.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

Page 108

Item No. 15.



 

Said described parcel of land contains 12.98 acres, more or less (+/-), and is subject to 

any rights-of-way or other easements of record as now existing on said described 

parcel of land. 

 

Page 109

Item No. 15.



Planning Commission   1 March 23, 2021 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Proceedings 

March 23, 2021 

1:15 p.m. 

(Zoom Webinar and viewable on City of Greeley YouTube) 

I. Call to Order

Chair Yeater called the meeting to order at 1:15 p.m.

II. Roll Call

Chair Yeater, Commissioners Andersen, Briscoe, Franzen, Modlin, Romulo and Schulte

were present.

Chair Yeater informed those attending that Item V on the agenda, public hearing regarding

household occupancy standards, would be continued to April 27, 2021 and requested a

motion.

Commissioner Andersen moved that the Planning Commission continue Item V for

consideration of a code update regarding household occupancy standards, case

Number CU2021-0001, to the regular Planning Commission meeting on April 27, 2021.

Commissioner Schulte seconded. The motion carried 7-0.

III. Approval of March 9, 2021 Minutes

Commissioner Andersen moved to approve the minutes dated March 9, 2021.

Commissioner Romulo seconded. The motion carried 7-0.

Page 110

Item No. 15.



 

Planning Commission                                                                             2                                                                 March 23, 2021 

 

IV. A public hearing to consider a request to rezone approximately 12.98 acres from R-E 

(Residential Estate) and H-A (Holding Agriculture) zoning districts to C-H 

(Commercial High Intensity) zoning district with a DCMP (Development Concept 

Master Plan) restricting certain land uses from the site 

 

Project Name:  7001 28th Street Rezone 

Case No.:  ZON2020-0010 

Applicant:  Faith Tabernacle Church Inc.  

Location: 7001 28th Street 

Presenter: Caleb Jackson, Planner II 

 

Caleb Jackson addressed the Commission and introduced the rezone request. He presented 

a map showing the location of the site as well as photographs of the site and surrounding 

area. Mr. Jackson provided a brief history of the site, including development of the church 

in Weld County in 2001, annexation to Greeley in 2002 with concurrent rezoning to 

Residential Estate. He explained that the request before the Commission today is to rezone 

approximately 12.98 acres to Commercial High Intensity with a Development Concept 

Master Plan (DCMP) that restricts certain uses from the site.  

 

Mr. Jackson advised that the proposed rezone would include the site and an adjacent 

right-of-way that is currently zoned Holding Agriculture. He added that the DCMP would 

serve to restrict uses except for a church, school, child care, telecommunications, utility, or 

oil and gas. Any other uses would require revising the DCMP and bringing the matter 

before the Commission 

 

Mr. Jackson briefly explained the overall recodification process and rationale for changing 

the section numbers associated with a rezone. He described the rezone criteria, adding that 

staff determined the request meets applicable criteria. Mr. Jackson reported that notices 

were mailed to property owners within 500 feet, signs were posted on the site, and notice 

was placed in the newspaper with no inquiries being received. He added that all comments 

had been addressed and that staff recommended approval.  

 

Rick Baldwin from Faith Tabernacle addressed the Commission and stated that the new 

zoning would align with surrounding zoning.  

 

Chair Yeater opened the public hearing at 1:24 p.m. There being no communication by 

U.S. mail, email or Zoom Chat or Q&A, the public hearing was closed at 1:24 p.m. 

 

Commissioner Andersen moved that, based on the application received and the project 

summary and accompanying analysis, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed 

rezone from R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A (Holding Agriculture) to C-H (Commercial 

High Intensity) with a Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) meets the applicable 

Development Code criteria, Section 18.30.050(c)(3) a, b, f, g and h [to be re-codified as 

Section 24-625(c)(3) a, b, f, g and h]; and, therefore, recommends approval of the rezone to 

the City Council. Commissioner Schulte seconded. 

 

Commissioner Andersen expressed favor of adding a DCMP to restrict uses on the site. 

The motion carried 7-0. 

 

  
Page 111

Item No. 15.



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0010  
March 23, 2021 Page 1 of 6 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
 
ITEM: Rezone from R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A (Holding 

Agriculture) to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) with a 
Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) 

  
FILE NUMBER: ZON2020-0010 
 
PROJECT: 7001 28th Street Rezone 
 
LOCATION: 7001 28th Street 
   
APPLICANT: Faith Tabernacle Church Inc. 
 
CASE PLANNER: Caleb Jackson, AICP | Planner II 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING DATE:   March 23, 2021 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION FUNCTION: 
The Planning Commission shall consider the staff report, along with testimony and comments 
made by the applicant and the public and shall then make a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding the application in the form of a finding based on the review criteria in Section 
18.30.050(c)(3) [to be re-codified as Section 24-625(c)(3)].      
     

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Greeley is considering a request by Faith Tabernacle Church Inc. to rezone the property 
located at 7001 28th Street, plus adjacent right-of-way, from R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A 
(Holding Agriculture) to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) with a Development Concept Master 
Plan (DCMP) (see Attachments A, B, and C). 
 
A. REQUEST 

The applicant is requesting approval of a rezone application. 
 

B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval.   
 

C. LOCATION Abutting Zoning: 
 North:  H-A (Holding Agriculture)  
 South:  C-H (Commercial High Intensity) 
 East:   H-A (Holding Agriculture)   
 West:    PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  

  

Page 112

Item No. 15.



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0010  
March 23, 2021 Page 2 of 6 
 
 

 
 Surrounding Land Uses:   
 North:  Undeveloped 

 South:  Hospital 
 East:    Single-Family Dwelling & Undeveloped 

 West:   Undeveloped   
 

 Site Characteristics: 
 The site is situated at the northeast corner of 71st Avenue at 28th Street, near 

Highway 34 Bypass. The site is developed with a church and manufactured 
home. The site generally slopes from a high point on the southwest side of 
the site towards the northeast.  

 
D. BACKGROUND 
The subject site is zoned R-E (Residential Estate) Zone District and is developed with a church 
and manufactured home. Some right-of-way adjacent to the church property is zoned H-A 
(Holding Agriculture), and is also within the proposed rezone boundary. The site was developed 
in 2001, prior to annexation. The site was annexed in the 2002 Faith Tabernacle Annexation (ORD 
42, 2002) and was zoned R-E at that time (ORD 53, 2002). The applicant is requesting to rezone 
to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) with a Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) that 
restricts most land uses from the site because the applicant intends to continue using the site as a 
church. Other uses not restricted by the DCMP include telecommunication uses, utility uses, oil 
and gas extraction, and uses commonly associated with churches such as childcare, preschools, 
and schools. Any additional uses would require an amendment to the DCMP.  
 
APPROVAL CRITERIA 

 
Development Code Section 18.30.050 [to be re-codified as Section 24-625] Rezoning 
Procedures 
 
For the purpose of establishing and maintaining sound, stable and desirable development within 
the City, the rezoning of land is to be discouraged and allowed only under circumstances provided 
for in this Section [of the Code].  This policy is based on the opinion of the City Council that the 
City’s zoning map is a result of a detailed and comprehensive appraisal of the City’s present and 
future needs regarding land use allocation and other zoning considerations, and, as such, should 
not be amended unless to correct manifest errors or because of changed or changing conditions 
in a particular area of the City in general.  
 
The review criteria found in Section 18.30.050(c)(3) of the Development Code [to be re-codified 
as Section 24-625(c)(3)] shall be used to evaluate the zoning amendment application.  
 

a)   Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that it is in the public interest 
to rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the 
area?  
 

Page 113

Item No. 15.



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0010  
March 23, 2021 Page 3 of 6 
 
 

Staff Comment:  The subject area has historically been developed with a mixture of 
mostly large lot residences and undeveloped parcels. However, the 
area is steadily developing with commercial uses at nodes along the 
Highway 34 Bypass, including the new hospital to the south of the 
subject site. Recently, City Council approved a preliminary planned 
unit development (Westgate – PUD2019-0014), which includes a 
commercial area located directly west of the subject site. Rezoning 
the subject site to C-H is consistent with the developing commercial 
node around the intersection of Highway 34 Bypass and 71st 
Avenue.  

   
This request complies with this criterion. 
 

b) Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 
development resulting and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given 
development trends?  

 
Staff Comment: The site has been zoned R-E since 2002. Given the development 

trends, the R-E zoning appears obsolete since the area is changing 
to more commercial in nature.  

 
This request complies with this criterion.  

 
c)  Are there clerical or technical errors to correct?  

 
Staff Comment: The request is not regarding the correction of clerical or technical 

errors. 
 
 This criterion is not applicable to this request.  
 

d) Are there detrimental environmental impacts, such as flood plains, inadequate 
drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect future development of this site 
and which may not have been considered during the original zoning of the property? 

 
Staff Comment: There are no known detrimental environmental conditions existing 

on site. 
 

This criterion is not applicable to this request.  
 

e)   Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community related 
use which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan; or have the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is 
warranted?  

 
Staff Comment: The proposed rezoning is not related to a community use. 
 

Page 114

Item No. 15.



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0010  
March 23, 2021 Page 4 of 6 
 
 

 This criterion is not applicable to this request. 
 

f) What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate 
neighborhood and the city as a whole (including potential noise and environmental 
impacts, visual impacts, the provision of City services such as police, fire, water, 
sewer, and pedestrian systems and parks and recreational facilities)? 

    
Staff Comment: The land use of the subject site is not intended to change, resulting 

in neither additional noise or environmental impacts nor impacts to 
City services, pedestrian systems, parks, or recreational facilities. 
With this rezoning request, there is no anticipated change in use, as 
the existing church use would continue. The proposed DCMP limits 
the allowed uses, and any additional uses would require an 
amendment to the DCMP with analysis of further possible impacts.  

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  

 
g)  Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be consistent 

with the policies and goals of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and comply with the 
applicable zoning overlay requirements? 

 
The following City of Greeley Imagine Greeley Comprehensive Plan policies apply to this 
request: 

 
Objective GC-2.4 Mixed-Use and Transit-Supportive Development  

Promote horizontal and vertical mixed-use development that integrates 
a variety of housing, commercial, employment, and recreational uses 
particularly in centers and along corridors identified on the Land Use 
Guidance map. 

 
Staff Comment: The proposed rezone supports the emerging commercial node at the 

intersection of Highway 34 Bypass and 71st Avenue, supporting mixed 
use in this area.  

 
The proposal complies with this criterion.  

 
h) What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved Zoning 

Suitability Plan for the property?     
 

Staff Summary:  The site is developed suitably for the proposed zoning.   
 

The proposal complies with this criterion.   
  
E. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 

1. HAZARDS 
Staff is unaware of any potential hazards that presently exist on the site.   

Page 115

Item No. 15.



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0010  
March 23, 2021 Page 5 of 6 
 
 

 
2. WILDLIFE 

The subject site is not located in an area identified for moderate or high wildlife impacts.  
There are no known impacts that would occur to wildlife if the site is rezoned.  
 

3. FLOODPLAIN  
The proposed rezone boundary is not located within the 100-year floodplain or floodway, 
according to the adopted Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) flood 
data.  
 

4. DRAINAGE AND EROSION 
The drainage pattern is expected to largely follow historical patterns.  The existing church 
use would continue. Drainage patterns would be examined in greater detail through any 
future land use requests.  
 

5. TRANSPORTATION 
The subject property is developed with access to 71st Avenue and 28th Street. The site has 
adequate transportation infrastructure to serve the current use and this would be reevaluated 
if further development were proposed in the future.  
 

F. SERVICES 
1. WATER 

Water mains are present in adjacent streets and would be reviewed for adequacy if 
redevelopment were proposed in the future.  
 

2. SANITATION  
Sewer infrastructure is installed along 71st Avenue and would be reviewed for adequacy if 
redevelopment were proposed in the future or if the existing septic failed.  

 
3. EMERGENCY SERVICES 

The subject site is serviced by the City of Greeley Fire and Police.  Fire Station #5 is located 
approximately two miles east of the site and Fire Station #7 is located approximately two 
miles north of the site.   

 
4. PARKS/OPEN SPACES 

No parks or regional open space areas are proposed with this rezone request. Additional 
parks and open spaces are anticipated with future development of undeveloped parcels in 
the area.  
 

5. SCHOOLS 
The proposed rezone is within Greeley-Evans School District 6. The proposed rezone is 
not expected to impact the school district.   

  

Page 116

Item No. 15.



 

Planning Commission Summary  
ZON2020-0010  
March 23, 2021 Page 6 of 6 
 
 

     
G. NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACTS 

1. VISUAL 
The land use on the current site is not expected to change as a result of this rezone. A 
separate sign permit is being processed for this property which could result in some visual 
impacts; however, the sign is consistent with commercial signage commonly located in 
commercial nodes along arterials and highways. 

 
2. NOISE 

No noise impacts are anticipated with the rezone request.  Any potential noise is regulated 
by the Municipal Code.   

 
H. PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 

Neighborhood notices were mailed to surrounding property owners on March 5, 2021, per 
Development Code requirements.  Two signs were posted on the site on March 11, 2021. No 
public comments have been received. 
 

I. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Based on the application received and the Project Summary and accompanying analysis, the 
Planning Commission finds that the proposed rezone from R-E (Residential Estate) and H-A 
(Holding Agriculture) to C-H (Commercial High Intensity) with a Development Concept 
Master Plan (DCMP) meets the applicable Development Code criteria, Section 18.30.050(c)(3) 
a, b, f, g and h [to be re-codified as Section 24-625(c)(3) a, b, f, g, and h]; and therefore, 
recommends approval of the rezone to the City Council. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – Vicinity Map 
Attachment B – Property Boundary Map 
Attachment C – Development Concept Master Plan 
 
 

Page 117

Item No. 15.



VICINITY MAP 

SUBJECT SITE 

US 34 BYPASS 

28th STREET 

71
st

 A
VE

N
U

E 

Attachment A

Page 118

Item No. 15.



� � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � 


� �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� �� � � �� � �  ! " # "$ % & # '( � ) *� +,- .  * ./ 0 1 . *2 34 / � 5 67 , ! 6 �  . 8 �/ * .9 : ,  * 9 * � + 9 / 8 ;7 � ! ;4 : 8 ./ 0 � 0 � .� < : * < � � += �4 > 4  � 8 1 . *2 34 / � 5 17 ;? . * @ 9 A 1 B = ! 1 4 C C � �� .9 : ; . 0 @ D/ * �/  . * 2 +) :4 4 8 3 4 / � 5 E ! < /  @9 8 � 8 +
F G H I J H J K L M NOP H M H Q R L I F K H S F I J H Q Q H R T U J V W V R V L I






























































































































1

X Y Z Y [ Y \ ]̂ _̀
a b c d e f e g h b i

j k l k m n

Attachment B

Page 119

Item No. 15.



� � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � 	 � � �� � � � �� � � �� � � �� � � � �� � � ��  !" # � � #$ % & # �' () $ � * +, ! � + � � # - �$ � #. / ! � �. � �  . $ - 0, � � 0) / - #$ % � % � #� 1 / � 1 � �  2 �) 3 ) � � - & # �' () $ � * &, 04 # � 5 . 6 & 7 2 � & ) 8 8 � �� #. / 0 # % 5 9$ � �$ � # � '  � /) ) - ( ) $ � * : � 1 $ � 5. - � -  
; < = > ? = ? @ A B CDE = B = F G A > ; @ = H ; > ? = F F = G I J ? K L K G K A >






























































































































M N O P Q R S T U V T Q U S W

XY Z [ \]̂ ]_ à b c d̀ e bf g
·

hf i j b d k
·

l bm̀ cn o à p j o a e b d q g o c ì̀ a b c d̀ e bf g r
·

s q̀ t d cf i u vẁ g g b d k a
·

x yz { |}~ �� � y |� �� } | | yz { �
·

�� �~ � � � y |� � � } | | yz { �
·

�� |� y~ � � � y |� � � } | | yz { �
·

� � � z � �� �} �� } | | yz { �
·

�� � � � �� � � �� � � �� � � � � � � �� �� � � �� � � � � �� � � �� � �� �� � � �� �� �� � �� � � ��   �� � ¡ ¢ � � �� � � �� � � £ ¤ �
·

¥¦ �� § ¨ � �} � © ª �¦ |} � � ¦ } � y «} z � � ¬
·

 i t o ® ¯ t j̀ ° ± g c ì g u p ² t l t ì ³́ f d µ _ à b c d̀ e a r¶ d a e b e o e b t df g
·

· j̀̀ è i b à° · t g o j ¸f i b o j
·

± j̀ i k̀ d q u ś ` g è i a° l b a a b t d a
·

¯ t a ® b ef g a
·

¹ b̧ if i b à° l o à o j a° º o ģ b q t i » of a bn ® o ģ b q
·

¶ d è i j̀ c bf è f d c ¹ t d kn ³ ì j ·f ì ° ¼ a a b a è c ¹ b½ b d k ¾ d b e a
·

º t g b q̀ ¿ h b ì s ef e b t d a° ¼ j ¸ o g f d q̀ v b a ®f e q ´ f d c s e t if k̀
·

s q ´ t t g a n ¼ c o g e p À o a b d̀ a a° ³ if c ` r
·

¥¦ �� § ¨ � �} � © � �¦ } � � � z ª ¦ } � y «} z � � ¬
·

Á z yÂ } ¦ � y� y} � Ã Ä � | |} {} �· t j j̀ i q bf g
·

Å d̀ d̀ g a
·

º è s e t ì a
·

º è k i t t j b d k a ´ t ® a
·

Æ è̀ i b d f i u · g b d b q
·

¼ i e° vf d q̀° º́ t e t s e o c b t a° f g g ì b à
·

¼ o e t _ d̀ ef g
·

·f i Ç ³ i o q È Éf a ´
·

³ tw b d k s ì½ b q̀ a
·

ÊË Ì ÍÎÏ ÐË Ñ Ò Ì ÓÎ Ô ÕÖ Ë Ì ÎÏ × Ò ÌË Ì Ø ÒË Ù Ú Ì Î Û Ò Û Ü Û Ò Ö Ì ÎÏ Ý Þ ß à ÎÏ áâ Ò Ñ ãä Ü å æ Ò Ì ç Ö èÎ

·

Àf i a° ³f ½̀ i d a° ² b k ´ e q g o ¸ a° ¹ t o d k̀ a
·

À b d k t ¯f g g a Ç ºf i g t i a
·

À ì w º o ¸ a
·

h t t c f d ç ½̀̀ if k̀ ® i t q̀ a a b d k éf q b g b e u p j b d t i r
·

À o b g c ì a ¿ · t d e if q e t i a s o ® ® g u ê é é b q̀ a Ç ëf i c a

·

· g f̀ d b d k Ç ì f d b e t i bf g s ì½ b q̀ a
·

v i u · g f̀ d b d k
·

± j b a a b t d ³ à e b d k · d̀ è i a
·

±m è i j b df e b d k ś t ® a
·

¼ o e t _ ®̀f b i° sf g à
·

· t d½̀ d b d̀ q̀ s e t ì a w b e ́ f a sf g à

·

 f a s ef e b t d a
·

 f a s ef e b t d a w b e _́ ®̀f b i° ¹ o ¸` Ç ³ b ì ś t ® a n b d q g o c b d k o d c ì k i t o d c é ò g a e t if k̀

·

í î � z « �¦ � Â } | �¦ � y |} ¦ ï � ¦ ð �

·

í} ñ¦ } � � y �z Â } � y ñ |} Ã} ò� y § �} z �ó ô � � � � z « §} ¦ � �z � | Â } � y ñ |} �� �¦ � {}

·

 t g é · t o i à a° · t o d e i u · g o ¸ a° v i b½ b d k _f d k̀ a

·

l b d bf e o ì  t g é
·

¹f o d c i t jf e a
·

¯ t è g a° l t è g a
·

l ` c b qf g ¿ v d̀ ef g ê é é b q̀ a Ç · g b d b q a° l f a af k̀ ³́ ìf ® b a e a° l ` c b qf g s o ® ® g u sf g à Ç _ d̀ ef g

·

l t i e of i b à° h o d̀ if ḡ t j̀ a
·

² o i à i b à°  ì̀ d ´ t o à a°  f i c d̀ ś t ® a
·

ê é é b q̀ a
·

ºf i È b d k ¹ t e a Ç s e i o q e o ì a
·

ºf w d ś t ® a
·

º ì a t df g s ì½ b q̀ ś t ® a p À f̀ o e u° Àf i ¸ ì° ³f d d b d k Ç ² f b g sf g t d a° ś t̀ _ ®̀f b i r

·

º i b d e b d k° · t ® u b d k ś t ® a° lf b g · d̀ è i a
·

_f c b t ¿ ³ Æ s ef e b t d a
·

À` c f d c À ì f È éf a e
·

· t j j o d b e u _ q̀ ì f e b t d À o b g c b d k a
·

¶ d c t t i ¿ ê o e c t t i ±m è d a b½̀ p s Èf e b d k _ b d È a° À tw g b d k ¼ g g ù a° Æ b c t̀ ¼ i qf c à° _ b c b d k · g o ¸ a° ³ d̀ d b a· t o i e a° è qõ r
·

ê o e c t t i ¶ d è d a b½̀ p  t ·f i e ³ if q È a° À o j ®̀ i ·f i a° è qõ r

·

l j̀ ¸ ì a b́ ® · g o ¸ a° ¯ f̀ g e ·́ g o ¸ a° l f i e bf g ¼ i e a s e o c b t a

·

ê ®̀ d s ®f q̀
·

ºf i È p ® t q È è r

·

ºf i È p d̀ b k ŕ

·

ºf i È p q t j j ¿ ì k r

·

_ d̀ ef g s ì½ b q̀ p ±ö o b ® j̀ d e° s jf g g ³ t t g a° s o ® ® g b à° ¼ ® ® g bf d q̀ a° ¯ t j̀ h o i d b a b́ d k a r

·

_ ®̀f b i ś t ® a

·

_ à ef o if d e a° ·f é à Ç ê e ´ ì ±f e b d k ± a ef ģ b a ´ j̀ d e a p ¶ d q g o c b d k ê o e c t t i s f̀ e b d k ¿ ±f e b d k¼ ì f a ¿ v i b½̀ n b d ¿ v i b½̀ n e ´ i o ¿ v i b½̀ n o ® r

·

_ èf b g sf g à

·

³́ f̀ è i p ¶ d c t t i ¿ v i b½̀ n b d r

·

³ if b d° ś o e e g `° À o a v ®̀ t e a

·

¾ ® ´ t g a è i u ś t ® a

·

÷� � « � �¦ ~ ø� « y� �¦ y� � �ó x § �¦ � � ø¦ } z � �ó x� � « y� � �

·

� �} �} �¦ ø �� �} �} z � ï � ¦ ð �ó ù � � �ó ø ò� � ¦ y� � �

·

x} | � x} ¦ Â } x� �¦ � {} Á z y� �

·

± d è i ef b d j̀ d e ± a ef ģ b a ´ j̀ d e¶ d c o a e i bf g

·

² ẁ a ®f ®̀ i Ç º o ģ b a b́ d k º g f d e a° À b d c ì b à

·

_ à̀ f i q Ḉ ³ à e b d k ¹f ¸ a

·

_ q̀ u q g b d k · d̀ è i a
ú û ü û ý þ ÿ � û � � � þ � � û ÿ � � � � � û � ÿ ý � ��� 	 
 � �  � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

 ! " ! # $

1

Attachment C

Page 120

Item No. 15.



7001 28th Street Rezone
ZON2020-0010

Caleb Jackson, AICP | Planner II Page 121

Item No. 15.



Background & 
Request

• 2001 – Church Built

• 2002 – Annexed & Zoned R-E

• Rezone Request (ZON2020-0010)

o Approximately 12.98 ac. to C-H with 

DCMP to restrict uses

US 34 Bypass

71
st

A
ve

nu
e

28th Street

Page 122

Item No. 15.



Surroundings

East
Zoning: H-A
Use: Single-Family Dwelling

H-A

C-H

PUD

H-A

R-E

Page 123

Item No. 15.



Surroundings

South
Zoning: C-H
Use: Hospital

H-A

C-H

PUD

H-A

R-E

Page 124

Item No. 15.



Surroundings

West
Zoning: PUD
Use: Undeveloped

H-A

C-H

PUD

H-A

R-E

Page 125

Item No. 15.



Surroundings

North
Zoning: H-A
Use: Undeveloped

H-A

C-H

PUD

H-A

R-E

Page 126

Item No. 15.



Site Photos

Page 127

Item No. 15.



Proposed Rezone

• Approximately 12.98 
acres from H-A and 
R-E to C-H with a 
DCMP to restrict 
uses

Page 128

Item No. 15.



Proposed DCMP

• Restricts C-H uses 
except church, 
school, childcare, 
telecommunications, 
utilities, oil & gas

Page 129

Item No. 15.



Rezone Criteria

§18.30.050
a. Has the area changed, or is it changing to such a degree that it is in the public interest to 
rezone the subject property to encourage development or redevelopment of the area?
b. Has the existing zoning been in place for at least fifteen (15) years without substantial 
development resulting and does the existing zoning appear to be obsolete, given 
development trends?

N/A c. Are there clerical or technical errors to correct?
N/A d. Are there detrimental environmental conditions, such as flood plains, presence of 

irrigation ditches, inadequate drainage, slopes, unstable soils, etc., that may affect future 
development of this site and which may not have been considered during the original 
zoning of the property?

Page 130

Item No. 15.



Rezone Criteria
§18.30.050

N/A e. Is the proposed rezoning necessary in order to provide land for a community related use 
which was not anticipated at the time of adoption of the City's Comprehensive Plan; or have 
the policies of the City changed to the extent that a rezoning is warranted?
f. What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon the immediate neighborhood 
and the City as a whole (including potential noise and environmental impacts, visual 
impacts, the provision of City services such as police, fire, water, sewer, street and 
pedestrian systems and parks and recreation facilities)?
g. Is there clear and convincing evidence that the proposed rezoning will be consistent with 
the policies and goals of the City's Comprehensive Plan and comply with applicable zoning 
overlay requirements?
h. What is the potential impact of the proposed rezoning upon an approved zoning 
suitability plan for the property?

Page 131

Item No. 15.



Recommendation
• ART Review – All comments have been addressed.
• Planning Commission recommends approval of the 

Rezone Request (ZON2020-0010)

Notice & Feedback
• Notice mailed to twelve landowners within 500 ft.
• Two signs posted at the property.
• Noticed in the newspaper.
• No inquiries

Page 132

Item No. 15.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
May 4, 2021 

Key Staff Contact: Anissa Hollingshead, City Clerk, 970-350-9742 

  

Title:  

Consideration of a resolution of the Greeley City Council endorsing the candidacy of 

Councilmember Dale Hall for the Executive Board of the Colorado Municipal League 

Summary: 
 

Councilmember Hall is seeking a position on the Executive Board of the Colorado 

Municipal League (CML).  A Resolution of support for Councilmember Hall’s candidacy 

is attached for Council’s consideration.  If approved, the application packet will be 

transmitted to CML. 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

Does this item create a fiscal impact on the City of Greeley? N/A 

If yes, what is the initial, or, onetime impact?  

What is the annual impact?  

What fund of the City will provide Funding?   

What is the source of revenue within the fund?  

Is there grant funding for this item? N/A 

If yes, does this grant require a match?  

Is this grant onetime or ongoing?  

Additional Comments:  

Legal Issues:   

None. 

Other Issues and Considerations: 

None. 

Applicable Council Priority and Goal: 

Civic Infrastructure – Engage community members to support civic development and 

services 

Decision Options:  

1) Adopt the resolution as presented; or 

2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended; or 

3) Deny the resolution; or 

4) Continue consideration of the resolution to a date certain. 

Council’s Recommended Action:  

Page 133

Item No. 16.



City Council Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

A motion to adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 134

Item No. 16.



 

CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION ______, 2021 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GREELEY CITY COUNCIL ENDORSING THE CANDIDACY OF COUNCIL 

MEMBER DALE HALL FOR THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF THE COLORADO MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Greeley City Council encourages members of Council to participate in 

local and statewide programs and organizations to further their knowledge and 

experience which, in turn, enhances their service to Greeley; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Colorado Municipal League (CML) has a long history of valuable service 

to the City of Greeley and Colorado municipalities statewide; and 

  

WHEREAS, there are open positions on the Executive Board of the Colorado Municipal 

League, specifically for representatives from larger communities such as Greeley; and 

  

WHEREAS, Council Member Dale Hall wishes to once again be a candidate for an at-

large city position, with the selection of such candidates to be determined by a majority 

vote of the CML members present at the annual CML Conference in September; and  

  

WHEREAS, Council Member Dale Hall has demonstrated his qualifications and 

preparation to serve in this capacity through his dedicated service at the State, County, 

and local level as an elected official at would be a valuable asset to CML and its 

membership; and 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Greeley is confident Council Member Dale Hall 

is the best candidate for this position and will serve Greeley and represent all Colorado 

communities in an exceptional way.    

 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREELEY, COLORADO, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The City Council wholeheartedly supports the candidacy of Council 

Member Dale Hall for an Executive Board position with the Colorado Municipal League. 

 

 

 

 

Page 135

Item No. 16.



 

Section 2. This resolution shall become effective immediately following its passage. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED ON THIS ______ DAY OF 

_____________________, 2021. 

  

ATTEST       CITY OF GREELEY, COLORADO 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 

City Clerk      Mayor 

Page 136

Item No. 16.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021  

 

Title 

Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events 

Summary 

During this portion of the meeting the City Manager or City Council may review the 

attached Council Calendar or Worksession Schedule regarding any upcoming 

meetings or events. 

 

Attachments 

Council Meeting/Worksession Schedule 

Council Meetings/Other Events Calendar 
                                 

Page 137

Item No. 17.



Date Description Sponsor Placement/Time
COVID‐19 Update Roy Otto 0.25

Culture, Parks and Recreation Cost Recovery Policy Andy McRoberts 0.50

Executive Session: City Manager Quarterly Check‐in

Ordinance ‐ Intro ‐ Local Improvement District (LIC); Ashcroft Draw Regional Lift Station Sean Chambers Consent

Ordinance – Intro – Local Improvement District (LIC); Large Sewer Trunk Main Extension into Poudre Bluffs Sean Chambers Consent

COVID‐19 Update Roy Otto Regular

Boards & Commissions Appointments Anissa Hollingshead Regular

COVID‐19 Update Roy Otto 0.25

Keep Greeley Moving Presentation  Paul Fetherston 0.50

Transportation Master Plan Joel Hemesath 0.75

City Council Meeting Scheduling
Current as of 04/30/2021

This schedule is subject to change

May 11, 2021 

Worksession Meeting

May 18, 2021 

Council Meeting

May 25, 2021 

Worksession Meeting

Page 138

Item No. 17.



1 4/30/2021 11:15 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

May 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

June 2021May 3, 2021 - 
May 9, 2021
Monday, May 3

Wednesday, May 5
7:30am - 9:00am Frontier House 10th Annual Breakfast (DoubleTree
by Hilton at Lincoln Park, 919 7th Street) - Council Master Calendar

Friday, May 7

Tuesday, May 4
6:00pm -  City Council Meeting - Council Master Calendar

Thursday, May 6
3:30pm -  IG Adv. Board (Butler)
6:00pm -  MPO (Gates/Payton)

Saturday, May 8

Sunday, May 9

Page 139

Item No. 17.



2 4/30/2021 11:15 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

May 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

June 2021May 10, 2021 - 
May 16, 2021
Monday, May 10

Wednesday, May 12

Friday, May 14
3:00pm - 3:30pm Promotional Pinning of Chief Brian Kuznik (1155 
10th Avenue, Fire Station No. 1) - Council Master Calendar

Tuesday, May 11
6:00pm -  City Council Worksession Meeting - Council Master 
Calendar

Thursday, May 13
7:30am -  Poudre River Trail (Hall)

Saturday, May 15

Sunday, May 16

Page 140

Item No. 17.



3 4/30/2021 11:15 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

May 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

June 2021May 17, 2021 - 
May 23, 2021
Monday, May 17

4:00pm - 8:00pm Save-the-Date Terry Ranch Celebration Dinner 
(Terry Ranch) - Council Master Calendar

Wednesday, May 19
2:00pm - 5:00pm Water & Sewer Board (Gates)

Friday, May 21

Tuesday, May 18
6:00pm -  City Council Meeting - Council Master Calendar

Thursday, May 20
7:30am - 8:30am DDA (Zasada/Butler)
3:30pm - 4:30pm Airport Authority (Clark/Payton)

Saturday, May 22

Sunday, May 23

Page 141

Item No. 17.



4 4/30/2021 11:15 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

May 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

June 2021May 24, 2021 - 
May 30, 2021
Monday, May 24

11:30am - 12:30pm Greeley Chamber of Commerce (Hall)
6:00pm - 7:00pm Youth Commission (Butler)

Wednesday, May 26
7:00am - 8:00am Upstate Colorado Economic Development 
(Gates/Hall) (Upstate Colorado Conference Room) - Council Master 
Calendar

Friday, May 28

Tuesday, May 25
6:00pm -  City Council Worksession Meeting - Council Master 
Calendar

Thursday, May 27
7:30am -  Poudre River Trail (Hall)

Saturday, May 29

Sunday, May 30

Page 142

Item No. 17.



5 4/30/2021 11:15 AMCouncil Master Calendar

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

May 2021
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

June 2021May 31, 2021 - 
June 6, 2021
Monday, May 31

9:00am - 9:30am Memorial Day Proclamation Presentation (Linn 
Grove Cemetery) - Council Master Calendar

Wednesday, June 2

Friday, June 4

Tuesday, June 1
6:00pm -  City Council Meeting - Council Master Calendar

Thursday, June 3
3:30pm -  IG Adv. Board (Butler)
6:00pm -  MPO (Gates/Payton)

Saturday, June 5

Sunday, June 6

Page 143

Item No. 17.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

March 16, 2021  

 

Title 

Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required 

resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at 

this meeting and at any previous meetings, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk 

to sign all such resolutions, agreements and ordinances 

Council’s Recommended Action 

A motion to approve the above authorizations. 

                                 

Page 144

Item No. 18.



City Council Worksession Agenda - City of Greeley, Colorado 

Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021 

Maria Gonzalez Estevez, Human Resources Director, 970-350-9714 

 

Title: 

Consideration of an Executive Session to determine positions, develop 

strategy and instruct negotiators regarding collective bargaining with the 

Greeley Police Officers Union and Greeley Fire Fighters Union Local 888 

Decision Options: 

If this item is considered favorably by City Council, the following suggested 

motion is needed:  

 

I move that the City Council go into an Executive Session to discuss the 

following matter as provided under C.R.S. 24-6-402(4) (e)(l) and Greeley 

Municipal Code 2.04.020(5): to determine positions, develop strategy and 

instruct negotiators regarding collective bargaining with the Greeley Police 

Officers Union and Greeley Fire Fighters Union Local 888. 

Attachments: 

None 

 

 

Page 145

Item No. 19.



Council Agenda Summary 
 

May 4, 2021  

 

Title 

Adjournment 

                                 

Page 146

Item No. 20.


	Alert Page
	Agenda Index
	Item No. 1.	Call to Order
	Agenda Summary - Call to Order

	Item No. 2.	Pledge of Allegiance
	Agenda Summary - Pledge of Allegiance

	Item No. 3.	Roll Call
	Agenda Summary - Roll Call

	Item No. 4.	Approval of the Agenda
	Agenda Summary - Approval of the Agenda

	Item No. 5.	Recognitions and Proclamations
	Agenda Summary - Recognitions and Proclamations
	05.04.21 What's Great Report
	Mental Health Month Proclamation
	Historic Preservation Month Proclamation

	Item No. 6.	Citizen Input
	Agenda Summary - Citizen Input

	Item No. 7.	Reports from Mayor and Council
	Agenda Summary - Reports Mayor and Council

	Item No. 8.	Initiatives from Mayor and Council
	Agenda Summary - Initiatives from Mayor and Council
	Status Report of Council Initiatives

	Consent Agenda - Item Nos. 9 - 12
	Item No. 9.	04.13 Worksession Minutes
	Agenda Summary - Worksession Minutes
	04.13.2021 Worksession Report

	Item No. 10.	04.20 Council Minutes
	Agenda Summary - Council Minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes - 20210420

	Item No. 11.	Resolution - Joint Resolution to Dissolve the Industrial Water Bank
	Agenda Summary - Joint Resolution Dissolving IWB
	Resolution - Joint Resolution Dissolving IWB
	Presentation - Joint Resolution Dissolving IWB

	Item No. 12.	Resolution - Greeley/Evans Sewage Treatment IGA
	Agenda Summary - Resolution - GreeleyEvans Sewage Treatment IGA
	Resolution - GreeleyEvans Sewage Treatment IGA
	Evans Resolution - Resolution GreeleyEvans Sewage Treatment IGA
	Presentation - Resolution - GreeleyEvans Sewage Treatment IGA

	Item No. 13.	Pulled Consent
	Agenda Summary - Pulled Consent Agenda Items

	Item No. 14.	Balmer Easement Ordinance
	Agenda Summary-Ordinance Final Reading Summary Balmer Farm Easement
	Ordinance Final Reading-Divest. Easement to Pub Serv. Co (Balmer Farm)
	Exhibit A to Ordinance Balmer Farm Easement (Option Agreement)
	Exhibit B to Ordinance Balmer Farm Easement (Easement Grant)
	Presentation-Balmer Farm Property Easement

	Item No. 15.	7001 28th Street Rezone - final reading & public hearing
	Agenda Summary - Ordinance Final 7001 28th Street Rezone
	Ordinance - Final Reading 7001 28th Street Rezone
	Planning Commission Minutes - 7001 28th Street Rezone
	Staff Report 7001 28th Street Rezone
	Presentation - 7001 28th Street Rezone

	Item No. 16.	CML Endorsement
	Agenda Summary - CML Nomination
	Resolution - CML Nomination

	Item No. 17.	Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events
	Agenda Summary - Scheduling of Meetings, Other Events
	Council Meeting and Worksession Schedule
	Council Calendar

	Item No. 18.	Consideration of a motion..
	Consideration of a motion authorizing the City Attorney to prepare any required resolutions, agreements, and ordinances to reflect action taken by the City Council at this meeting

	Item No. 19.	Executive Session - Police and Fire Negotiations
	Agenda Summary - Executive Session

	Item No. 20.	Adjournment
	Agenda Summary - Adjournment




